
NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES 

120 Torbay Road, P.O. Box 21040, St. John’s, Newfoundland and Labrador, Canada, A1A 5B2 

 

 

Hearing Transcript  

 

REFERENCE TO THE BOARD 

RATE MITIGATION OPTIONS AND IMPACTS 

MUSKRAT FALLS PROJECT 

 

October 3, 2019 
 

 

PRESENT:  

 

The Board: 

Darlene Whalen, Chair and CEO 

Dwanda Newman, Vice-Chair 

John O’Brien, Commissioner  

 

Board Counsel/ Staff: 

Jacqueline Glynn, Board Counsel 

Maureen Greene, Q.C. 

Cheryl Blundon, Board Secretary 

  

Parties  

 

Nalcor Energy/ 

Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro 

Geoff Young, Q.C., Counsel - NL Hydro 

David Eaton, Q.C., Counsel – Nalcor Energy 

 

Consumer Advocate 

Dennis Browne, Q.C. – Consumer Advocate 

Stephen Fitzgerald, Counsel – Consumer Advocate 

 

Island Industrial Consumer Group 
Paul Coxworthy, Counsel 

Dean Porter, Counsel 

Denis Fleming, Counsel 

 

Witnesses 

 

The Liberty Consulting Group – Panel 

John Antonuk 

Brian Daschbach 

Kevin Cellars 

Dr. James Letzelter 

Randall Vickroy 

 

 

Newfoundland Power 

Kelly Hopkins, Counsel 

Liam O’Brien, Counsel 

 



CHAIR:
Q. Good morning everybody.  I’d like to welcome

everyone to the public hearing phase of the
Board’s ongoing Review of Rate Mitigation,
options and impacts arising from the Muskrat
Falls Project.  My name is Darlene Whalen.
I’m the Chair and CEO of the Board and for
this public hearing, I will serve as Chair
of the Panel of three commissioners who have
responsibility for this matter.  My
colleagues joining me on the Panel are
Commissioner Dwanda Newman, Vice-Chair of
the Board; and Commissioner John O’Brien.
Assisting the Board at this hearing and
seated at the table to my right are Maureen
Greene hearing counsel; Jacqui Glynn, Board
counsel; and Cheryl Blundon, director of
Corporate Services and Board secretary.  We
also have Glenda Gibbons from Discoveries
Unlimited who will be doing our
transcription and Bobbi Sheppard from Nalcor
who will be assisting with electronic
document retrieval.  Hi Bobbi, nice to see
you again.  By way of background, excuse me,
I’ve got a bot if a cold this morning.  By
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way of background, on September 5th, 2018
government issued a reference directing the
Board to review and report on options to
reduce the impact of the Muskrat Falls
Project costs on electricity rates up to the
year 2030.  The reference set out three
specific questions to be addressed by the
Board.  Question 1: “Options to reduce the
impact of the Muskrat Falls Project costs on
electricity rates up to the year of 2030 or
such shorter period as the Board see fit
including cost savings and revenue
opportunities with respect to electricity,
including generation, transmission,
distribution, sales and market assets and
activities of Nalcor Energy and its
Subsidiaries.”  Question 2: “The amount of
energy and capacity from the Muskrat Falls
Project required to meet the Island
interconnected load and the remaining
surplus energy and capacity available for
other uses such as export and load growth.”
And Question 3: “The potential electricity
rate impacts of the options identified in
Question 1, based on the most recent Muskrat
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Fall Project cost estimates.”  An interim
report of the Board’s preliminary findings
with respect to the first two of these
questions was required to be filed on
February 15th, 2019, and the Board’s final
report must be completed by January 31st,
2020.  The Board understands the importance
of the work to be done in this reference and
the significance of the issues to the
province and to electricity consumers on the
Island.  As noted in the Board’s interim
report to government, the expected rate
impacts of the Muskrat Falls Project are
extraordinary by any measure.  The average
rates paid by customers of Newfoundland
Power and certain customers of Newfoundland
and Labrador Hydro are projected to
increase—or are projected to be in the range
of nine to ten cents per kilowatt hour
higher following commissioning of the
project.  In the reference, government
stated that these increases are not
acceptable and noted that it would likely
cause financial hardships for consumers on
the Island.  The Board also acknowledges the
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significant rate increases which came into
effect this week for customers of
Newfoundland Power and certain customers of
Hydro which will only add to the impact of
these projected rate increases.  It is hoped
that the work completed as part of this
reference with the contribution of the
parties and other interested persons will
result in the identification and full
assessment of reasonable rate mitigation
opportunities related to electricity so that
government has the best information
available to assist in addressing this
challenge.  I’d like to take a few minutes
to describe the work that’s been completed
to this point.  To assist in answering the
reference questions, the Board engaged the
services of two expert consultants, the
Liberty Consulting Group and Synapse Energy
Economics Inc.  In December 2018, both
Liberty and Synapse filed interim reports
setting out preliminary findings.  Following
review of these reports and submissions, and
the submissions filed in relation to them,
the Board submitted its interim report to
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government as required on February 15th.  On
February 22nd, 2019, the Board published an
invitation to request standing in the review
which would provide the opportunity to
present evidence and ask questions at the
public hearing.  As the primary responding
parties to the information requests required
answers to the referenced questions, Nalcor
and Hydro have standing.  Mr. Dennis Browne,
Q.C. was appointed as the consumer advocate
by government for this reference and as such
also has full standing.  Newfoundland Power
and a group of Island industrial customers
specifically Corner Brook Pulp and Paper
Limited and NARL Refining Limited
partnership and Vale Newfoundland and
Labrador Limited were also granted full
standing for the review.  A group of
customers on the Labrador interconnected
system, Sheshatshiu Innu First Nation, Happy
Valley-Goose Bay, Wabush and the Town of
Labrador City were also granted limited
standing to represent the interest of the
Labrador interconnected system customers
where those interests diverge from the
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general interest of all ratepayers as
represented by the consumer advocate.  I
think this would be a good point to ask the
parties present and seated at the tables
before us to introduce themselves for the
purposes of the record and for those who are
present in the room.  We’ll start with
Nalcor and Hydro.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Good morning, Madam Chair.  David Eaton for

Nalcor.
CHAIR:
Q. Thank you.
YOUNG, Q.C.:
Q. Geoff Young for Newfoundland and Labrador

Hydro.
CHAIR:
Q. Welcome.  Consumer advocate?
MR. FITZGERALD:
Q. Good morning, Madam Chair, Board.  Steve

Fitzgerald, counsel for Mr. Dennis Browne.
Also, we have with us Mr. Doug Bowman and
James Feehan.

CHAIR:
Q. Welcome.  Newfoundland Power?
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MR. O’BRIEN:
Q. Good morning, Madam Chair, Commissioners.

Liam O’Brien and Kelly Hopkins on behalf of
Newfoundland Power.

CHAIR:
Q. Welcome.  And the Industrial Customer Group?
MR. FLEMING:
Q. Good morning.  Dennis Fleming, Dean Porter

and Paul Coxworthy on behalf of the Island
Industrial Customers.

CHAIR:
Q. Thank you.  Over the past six months, the

Board, its consultants and the parties
before you have worked collaboratively to
gather the necessary information required
for the Board to respond to the reference
questions.  The Board has facilitated three
technical conferences at its offices at
which its experts were made available to the
parties to answer questions, provide
clarification on issues and seek input.
Nalcor has responded to 287 information
requests from the Board and Newfoundland
Power has responded to 104 information
requests.  The Board’s consultants have also
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met with the parties and have exchanged
additional information on a variety of
issues related to the reference questions.
Liberty and Synapse filed their reports on
September 3rd, setting out their findings
based on the information gathered since
their interim reports.  Additional reports
and information were filed by the parties on
September 20th.  The Board acknowledges the
efforts of Nalcor, Hydro and Newfoundland
Power in responding to the extensive
requests for information and in making the
necessary staff and executive available as
required.  We also thank the other parties
for their cooperation and active
participation in the review to date.
Appreciation is also extended to the Board’s
staff and advisors for their efforts and
particularly Maureen Greene who has taken
the lead counsel role on this matter and on
behalf of the Board.  I know it’s taken a
considerable amount of work on the part of
all involved to ensure that the schedule was
maintained to get us to this public hearing
phase and we thank you for efforts.  The
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purpose of this public hearing is to provide
a forum for the Board to hear information
and perspectives on issues so that it can
fully and fairly respond to the reference
questions and file its report as required in
January of 2020.  Notice of this hearing was
published in papers across the province
beginning on September 4th and a schedule of
hearing dates and presentations was released
yesterday.  The hearing will begin today
with the presentation from Liberty who will
present their findings and answer questions
from the parties and commissioners.  Synapse
is scheduled to begin their presentation on
Monday to be followed by presentations from
Nalcor, Newfoundland Power and the
Industrial Customer Group.  Presentations
from other interested persons who requested
the opportunity to do so will be heard on
Friday, October 18th.  For those who did not
request the opportunity make a presentation,
comments and submissions may be filed
anytime up to October 25th, 2019 and it is
expected that the parties will file their
submissions on November 1st.  The schedule
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for the hearing is available on the Board’s
website and will be updated as required.
The Board will endeavour to maintain the
schedule and ask that the parties do their
utmost to do the same.  The timely
conclusion of the hearing will ensure that
the Board is able to begin the task of
completing its report on the reference
questions to be filed with government by the
end of January 2020.  And before we get
started with the business of the day, there
are a number of other, mostly housekeeping
matters I’d like to quickly review.  All
information filed to date in relation to the
reference with the exception of confidential
information is posted on the Board’s website
and all documentation presented during the
public hearing will be posted on the website
as it is received.  These proceedings are
being recorded by Discoveries Unlimited
under the supervision of the Board
secretary.  Transcripts of each day’s
proceedings will be available by the same
evening on the Board’s website and will be
sent directly to the parties.  The audio
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recording of each day’s proceedings will
also be available on the website by the same
evening.  I just ask that you each take a
moment just to make sure your cell phones
are all silenced just so as to not disrupt
the recording of the proceeding.  Parties,
any parties who have concerns or anyone in
the room who has concerns or issues with the
creature comforts, layout, supplies or any
accommodation required, you should bring
these matters to the attention of the
Board’s secretary, Cheryl Blundon, and we’ll
make every effort to assist you.  And with
the exception of today, the normal daily
sitting time will be 9:00 to 1:30 with a
half-hour break from 11:00 to 11:30.  And
with that said, I’d like to turn things over
to Ms. Greene to ensure I haven’t missed
anything and to introduce our first
presentation.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Thank you, Chair.  To my knowledge, there’s

no other issues that need to be raised at
this time.

CHAIR:
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Q. I’ll turn it over to you, thank you.
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Thank you.  I’d like to begin by introducing

the panel that is seated across from me.
These are the representatives of the Liberty
Consulting Group and I will begin with the
president of Liberty, John Antonuk.  And
John, I’d ask, or Mr. Antonuk, I would ask
that after you introduce yourself, you give
a very brief overview of your personal
background and experience as it relates to
the work that you did for the Board.  And
then if you could introduce each member of
your team, and as well, I ask each member to
give a very high-level brief overview of
your background.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Okay.  Let me start by saying it’s a

pleasure to be among friends again and it’s
a privilege to be asked to contribute to a
matter that we know is of first importance
to the residents, the businesses and the
institutions of the province.  My name is
John Antonuk and I’m, I guess, the last-
standing founder of Liberty which has been
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around now for a little more than 30 years.
I began my career with the Pennsylvania
Public Utility Commission and then served in
a regulatory management capacity at
Pennsylvania Power and Light Company which
as most US utilities, has just initials and
no longer a real name.  Following that, I’ve
been engaged for most of that with Liberty
and my focus, well my overall focus, has
been management of our work and I’ve
probably managed somewhere in the order of
500 engagements over those 30 years.  We’ve
now worked in every US state, but one and
we’ve been engaged in four provinces in
Canada, principally Nova Scotia and
Newfoundland and Labrador.  Apart from
managing projects, my principal focus has
been executive organization, management,
corporate structure, but I have also been
engaged very deeply in several dozen fuel
and energy and marketing examinations and
probably something on the order of two dozen
management audits which focus widely on
utility management and operations.

MR. LETZELTER:
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Q. Good morning.  My name is Jim Letzelter.
I’m a management consultant with 29 years of
experience in the electric power industry.
I have a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical
Engineering, an MBA with a concentration in
Finance and a Doctorate in Law and Policy.
My areas of expertise include power market
assessment, financial analysis, generation
asset evaluation, risk analysis and computer
modelling.  I’ve been involved in power
plant development, acquisition and
disposition throughout the US for decades,
typically providing the evaluations used in
these transactions.  I’ve also served as the
auction monitor in three US states
overseeing the standard offer of service
auctions by those states’ regulated
utilities.  I’ve also been asked to provide
some background on one of our key team
members who could not make it to the meeting
today, and that’s Michael Beck.  Mr. Beck is
a management consultant with 35 years of
experience in the industry.  He holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering and an MBA
and is a registered professional engineer.
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He served as a senior partner in the energy
practices of both Theodore Barry and
Associates and PA Consulting.  And his
specialties include operational improvement,
competitive analysis, asset evaluation,
environmental compliance and restructuring.

MR. DASCHBACH:
Q. Good morning.  I’m Brian Daschbach.  I’m a

member of the Liberty team.  I’ve been a
consultant for about five years to the
electric gas utility industry sector.  My
expertise and experience stem from 35 years
at Baltimore Gas and Electric, the last 20
years at the senior executive level, either
chief engineer, vice-president or senior
vice-president.  My last role was the
responsibility for the field operations
across all the lines of business.  I was
responsible for, besides those field
operations, the management of about 1400
organic utility employees and more than
2,000 contractors.

MR. VICKROY:
Q. Yes, I’m Randall Vickroy.  I spent my entire

career in utility corporate finance,
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originally started with a gas and electric
utility in Colorado and worked on the
finance staff.  And we were responsible for
raising money, stocks, bonds, medium-term
notes, things like that.

(9:45 a.m.)
We also did financial analysis and we worked
on capital structures and other financial
issues.  The last 25 years, I’ve worked in
the utility corporate finance for the
Liberty Consulting Group primarily and we
have done a lot as John said.  Management
audits, and I would handle the finance
portion of that, and we also have done work
for a number of companies, both large and
small, such as Duke, Exelon, et cetera, as
well as some smaller companies.  We’ve also
worked for federally-supported generation in
transmission companies like East Kentucky
Power, Flat River Power, et cetera.  So, we
have a very wide range of experience
regarding utility corporate finance.

MR. CELLARS:
Q. Good morning.  My name is Kevin Cellars.  I

have greater than 30 years of experience in
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generation with power plants.  I started my
career as a nuclear submarine officer for
the United States Navy.  I subsequently
worked at three large utilities, Exelon,
PSEG and Baltimore Gas Electric where my
experience has been in both fossil and
nuclear-generating stations.  I have a
varying level of experience starting from
field and design engineer, all the way to
executive management in construction and
engineering.  I have experience in
procurement, construction, outage
management, engineering project manager and
plant acquisitions.  I have a Bachelor’s
Degree in Mathematics and Economics and I
have a Master’s in Sciences with John
Hopkins University in Engineering Management
concentrating in Organization and Project
Management.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Thank you very much.  For the information of

the commissioners, Mr. Beck is not here
because his son is being married.  So, we
excused him from attending today, but if
there are—and I’m sure the rest of the panel
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will be able to address his areas.  Turning
now to the rate mitigation to the work that
you did, the reference questions that were
received from the government for the Board’s
consideration and the report did address
certain areas.  Mr. Antonuk, could you
please advise what were the questions that
Liberty’s work addressed as required by the
reference questions?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. I should be live.  Am I not –
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. It’s the presentation.  Okay.  Is there a

problem?  You’re not able to –
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes.
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. There you go.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Okay.  We’re driving now?  Okay, thank you.

We focused on questions 1 and 3 which are
identified there and did not address aspects
of question 2.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. And what were those aspects of question 1 or
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in phase 2, what were those issues you did
not address?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. We address in phase 1 certain financing

issues that we undertook a base analysis of
those.  They basically related to financing
changes relative to LCP that could alter
either the amounts or the timing of the
availability of certain sources of
mitigation.  It was decided to leave those
aside because they were under discussion
between provincial and federal
representatives.  As I said, we did a base
analysis and we think that analysis
continues to have merit in identifying
finance related options, but obviously, with
there being a discussion between federal and
provincial officials, they became above our
pay-grade.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. And can you briefly explain how you went

about doing your work?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes, I think the Chair listed in good form

and detail the principal steps.  So, I’ll
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focus instead on indicating that extensive
data development and analysis was the key
feature of our work, followed by work
sessions both individually and jointly with
Nalcor, Hydro and Newfoundland Power
personnel.  We also undertook a number of
meetings with the consumer advocate, Island
Industrial Customers and we met with
bargaining unit representatives as well.  As
most of you know, there were all party
conferences in March, June and August.  And
I think the thing I want to do is, I believe
we did in phase 1, is again commend the
cooperation that we received from Nalcor,
Hydro and Newfoundland Power, and that
cooperation was necessary, it was timely,
and as we saw, it very freely given despite
the fact that we were asking them to deal
with issues that were pretty tough issues.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Okay.  The reference questions also ask the

Board to look at opportunities that there
might be to reduce the Lower Churchill
Project operating and maintenance costs as
well as best industry practices for export
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market sales.  Did Liberty undertake work in
those areas as well?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. We did.  We reported on work we did in those

areas in phase 1 and we continued that work
through phase 2.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Okay, the next topic I wanted to talk to you

about was Liberty’s qualifications.  You
each have addressed your own individual
background.  Is there anything you would
like to add about your company’s experience
and qualifications to do the work you
undertook for the Board?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. There’s a great deal of information on the

next couple of slides.  I’ll just address it
at the high level and the details are there
for those who are interested.  Across a
period of two decades, we’ve done two dozen
comprehensive management audits which means
we’re basically doing one pretty much all
the time and have been.  And those focus on
everything it takes to plan, manage and
execute utility responsibilities, and
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typically including relationships with
affiliates for those utilities that operate
in both markets.  We have also undertaken
some 30 engagements which have focused on an
examination of affiliate relationships and
transactions.  And they focus specifically
on organizational design, resource
alignment, transactions that exist between
utilities that are operating in both
regulated and unregulated environments.  And
it also very commonly or often includes
utilities that are operating in multiple
stages and even if they’re only in regulated
operations, but use a service company to
provide service to common or a number of
operating companies which requires of course
a logical organization, a well-defined list
of services and then proper charging for
those services.  We’ve also done extensive
work in energy markets.  We helped several
states figure out how to do, what we call in
the US, restructuring which is the
deregulation of generation while
transmission and distribution remain under
monopoly service providers.  We’ve also
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looked at optimizing portfolio value and the
effectiveness of market participation in a
number of states.  And as Jim mentioned a
little earlier, we oversee the competitive
supply solicitations in a number of states.
Those are restructured states where a
provider of last resort responsibilities are
fulfilled through a market-wide solicitation
by all utilities in the state.  So, that
requires us to assure that the processes are
designed correctly and that they’re
administered fairly and that the prices that
are achieved are within an appropriate
market range.  Randy talked a little bit
about financial opportunities.  Oh, I’m
sorry, I went to—I think I went right
through.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Okay.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Fuel and energy management audits, I

mentioned.  Those look at how fuel and
energy acquired, including market trading
done to sell excess power or acquire power
that isn’t owned on site.  We have done
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quite a number of staffing studies.  We’re,
in fact, engaged in two of them at the same
time we were looking at the staffing
elements of the study here.  We’ve done many
more, many broader than what we’ve done
here, some of utilities that are much bigger
and some of the utilities that are much
smaller.  And then with respect to finance
and debt ratings, that’s a common issue in
our management audits.  And we’ve also
participated on behalf of commission staffs
and in some cases private parties if
acquisition proceedings were key issues are
what are the current financial circumstances
of the entities involved, and what will be
the risks, what will be the consequences for
equity and debt issuances post merger as
well?

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Thank you.  I’d like now to turn to your

report that was filed on September 3rd, and I
wonder, Ms. Sheppard, if you could bring up
page 4 of Liberty’s report dated September
3rd?  I understand there is one small editing
or typo correction you would like to make on
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page 4, is that correct?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes, there’s a reference.
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Page 4.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. I believe it was near the bottom.
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Yes, when we get to it.  It’ll come up on

the screen there in a moment.
MS. SHEPPARD:
Q. Just coming up on the screen there.
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Okay.  It’s in the last full paragraph about

halfway down.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Okay.
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. The sentence begins “doing so would make

another roughly 110 million dollars
available annually between 2021 and 2025”.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes.  The word “annually” should be

stricken.  This refers to passages later in
the report which correctly interpret or
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express the 110 million as being a number
for the whole period and in this case, we
mistakenly inserted the word “annually”.  So
here the reference should be the same – or
the statement should be the same as it is
later in the report referring to 110 million
dollars over the full period identified
there.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. And the other pages with the references, for

the record, are pages 24 and 93 where it is
stated correctly that the 110 million is
over the period 2021 to 2025 and not
annually.

Okay.  If we could now talk about your
report and what were the main areas of focus
that you reported on in your report?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. If we could go back to – I can’t – I think

we’re – we both want to be in the driver’s
seat.  Okay, there it is.  Financial
opportunities, we basically continued with
the work we were doing in Phase 1, continued
to refine our information, look for anything
that would be new or different and more
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particularly, we began to incorporate those
opportunities into the revenue requirements
model, which would allow us to match up the
opportunities they presented along with
opportunities from others.

On the operational side, we continued
examining the organizational structures,
resources and operations of the three main
sources of utility service provision in the
Province, Nalcor, Hydro and Newfoundland
Power.  We looked at integrating Nalcor
Power Supply and Hydro under a common
structure.  We also looked at the potential
for transferring operational responsibility
between Hydro and Newfoundland Power.  As
you all know, they share functions depending
on the areas and the customers served and
the functions provided.  We also looked at
LCP operations and maintenance costs from
two perspectives, their level and
reasonableness and opportunities to reduce
them.

As Maureen noted in a question earlier,
we looked at the utility regulatory
framework in the Province as it concerns the
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areas we were responsible for.  We looked at
utility industry practices and approaches
for marketing energy, which in the US is
commonly referred to as off-system sales,
meaning sales made to other than native
customers, and we also then, as I noted,
were incorporating as we went our results as
they developed into a real-time revenue
requirements mitigation model which allows
our assumptions about changes in either
revenues or expenses and those of others to
be incorporated into a model that will
translate that into total dollars mitigated
and the effect on retail rates.

There’s a brief discussion here of the
revenue requirements model.  I think the –
as I said, we operate the model in two ways.
One is to show total revenue requirements
dollars and cents per kilowatt hour.  We did
not do segregation by customer class.  We
did total revenue requirement.  Certainly as
you have read and will hear from Synapse,
they did more looking at effects of things
on individual classes than we did.  Our
model has the ability to change inputs,
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whether from us or from anyone else, with
respect to revenues, expenses, off-system
sales and margins and any other factors
identified as affecting revenue
requirements.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. I’d like now to talk about those specific

areas and look first to the financial
opportunities as you describe them in your
report.  Can you explain for the
Commissioners what were the financial
opportunities you reviewed and what the
potential is from them for rate mitigation?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Well, we observed that they were very large

in magnitude in Phase 1.  That was confirmed
in Phase 2 and as our knowledge of the other
opportunities matured and developed in Phase
2, it became clear that the two sources
account for somewhat more than two-thirds of
the total amounts that we identified as
available for rate mitigation, and I want to
say available because as we’re going to
discuss, a lot of these depend on provincial
matters that we did not attempt to address.
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So, we tried to establish a pool, but
certainly recognizing that it’s up to the
Province to decide what portions of that
pool it finds appropriate to make available.

The two sources are LCP dividends and
off-system sales from Muskrat Falls and the
opportunity begins at a level in the range
of about 130 million dollars in 2021 and as
you see from the next two points there, it
grows very substantially by 2039.  That is a
20-year period, not the 10-year period
called by the reference.  As I’ll explain,
we extended that period out because it
became – particularly because it became –
well, let me say it differently.  We
suspected that changes over ten years might
look very different than changes over 20
years and we confirmed, in fact, that that
was the case in Phase 2.  So, we thought it
was appropriate to run the period out for 20
years to show first a continuation of
benefits which will grow substantially in
that second ten years compared to the first
ten, and also which subject themself to
possible financial rearrangements that might
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be able to advance that second year pot of
benefits somewhat to the first part.  That’s
providing a levelling of rate increases.
And those are the financial options that I
said were suspended at the end of Phase 1
and potentially more that might exist that
we never looked at.

It’s one thing to talk about dollars.
It’s a little hard to relate them to rates.
You can do it, and we did.  Those
opportunities alone have the potential to
reduce rates by 60 cents – six cents per
kilowatt hour by 2030 and then because of
their continuing growth that that amount
will increase to somewhat in the order of
nine cents by 2039, which makes them the
dominant, but as we’re going to discuss not
the only source of potential rate
reductions.

(10:00 a.m.)
As I said, there are implications for

the Provincial Government.  The financial
opportunities consist of really two sources
of what I’ll call Provincial funds flow,
some that will become available after LCP
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operation and secondarily, some that are
already available for Government use.

And they have two – there are two
principal implications with respect to the
financial opportunities.  One, of course, is
the Government’s ability to operate without
funds that are moved from whatever purpose
they’re applied to today or planned to be
applied to in the future to rate mitigation.
These are not net new dollars.  They’re
dollars moved from another source to
mitigation.

And second, some of those sources have
natural limits beyond which you can begin to
negatively affect the Government’s credit
ratings and therefore the amount it pays to
acquire financing, and obviously only the
Province is in a position to make those
judgments and we’ll talk a little bit about
how those limits are set and what their
implications are.

Ultimately though, I think the key
thing to keep in mind is the implications
depend on the amount of dollars that
Government ultimately determines ought to be
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applied to rate mitigation versus other
purposes.  Those are significant in central
policy issues for the Government to resolve
and we did not attempt to wade into those
waters.  I would say, you know, as tough as
our work was, we did the easy part when it
comes to making those kind of judgments.

Talking a little more about LCP
dividends, they arise from two sources.
Those are purchase power agreement and
transmission funding agreement under which
Hydro will make payments associated with the
LCP assets.  The contributions from those
dividends grow pretty significantly.  They
start at 90 million in 2021 and they
increase to over 550 million by 2039.
You’ll see the numbers are a little more
precise on the charts.  I think the right
way to look at them from an analytical
purpose is to try to be precise, but
recognizing where we are and how much things
can change, you’ll see I tend to round
numbers like that.

What is the source of those dividends?
The source of those dividends is the 3.7
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billion investment that the Government has
made in LCP, which entitle it to an 8.4
percent return on equity for Muskrat Falls
and the Labrador Transmission assets, and I
put the note there backloaded.  That means
that the way those returns will come to the
Province causes them to increase
significantly in later years and that’s one
of the reasons why we see, when we look at
the second ten years, a significantly
greater source of mitigation.

The return on the LIL is similar.  It’s
8.5 percent.  That’s more on kind of a
straight-line basis, a traditional rate of
return basis.  So those are, I would argue,
not a front nor backloaded.  They kind of
flow in the way returns ordinarily do for
utility investments.

The costs under the two agreements are
very substantial.  They begin, as you can
see there, at 726 million dollars a year.
So, while the dividends are substantial,
they obviously don’t – they don’t account
for all of the costs that are required to be
paid by Hydro under the agreements
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associated with the LCP assets.  Off-system
sales is the second biggest component and it
makes up that three-quarters portion along
with the LCP dividends.

There has been some question about how
our numbers match with those that Synapse
has used.  We considered only the allocated
to MF or Muskrat Falls portion and they
considered the allocated to New Hampshire –
or New Hampshire – Newfoundland Hydro
portion.  We did not consider the
Newfoundland Hydro portion and that accounts
for the difference between the export sales
data between their work and ours.  It’s
important to note that for our purposes
Hydro’s rate forecast already account for
the allocated to NH portion or the Hydro
portion.  So there’s not really a mitigation
opportunity with respect to those.  It was
certainly proper for Synapse to consider
them in looking at total export sales and
what factors might or should change those.
But for us, there was not a mitigation
opportunity there, so they did not form a
part of our work.
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And as I’m going to explain later, you
know, it’s very clear to us, and frankly I
don’t think there’s much disagreement about
that, is that accepted regulatory principles
ordinarily apply those margins to offset
Hydro’s revenue requirements.  If there’s a
difference between us, it – between us and
those who’ve filed in response to our
report, it’s really that, you know, it is a
policy decision for the Province to make and
while I don’t disagree with that, I think we
should all recognize that to the extent that
continues to be the Province’s decision, it
is a – it would be contrary to what is
essentially universal practice in the
utility industry.

Other financial mitigation sources
exist, but they’re not nearly as
substantial.  But they are nevertheless
substantial in their own right.  One of them
are the returns are built into Hydro’s
rates.  As is typically true in the
industry, Hydro earns a return on the equity
investment that it makes in its operations.
The target that Hydro has used, which is a
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common target, is 25 percent equity as a
percent of its total capital structure,
basically 25 percent equity, 75 percent
debt.

We began using that target as a
baseline, not because we endorse it, but it
was a starting point.  At that level,
Hydro’s equity will need to build to reach
25 percent, which it will do ’25, 2025 or
2026.  Once it does so, there is the
potential for an average of 43 million
dollars a year in returns that can be used
for mitigation while maintaining that 25
percent equity level.  The returns remain
substantial from this source thereafter, but
become much more variable.  They vary
between six and 83 million, if you continue
out for the next period that ends in 2039.
As you’ll see, for the full period, they
still average about the same amount, 46
million versus 43.  But I think the thing to
keep in mind is to note that if you’re going
to use them as a source of mitigation,
you’re going to have a year-to-year jump up
and down in those last years that you don’t
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see as dramatically in the earlier years.
There are also dividends – or not

dividends, but payments made by both
Churchill Falls now and Muskrat Falls when
in operation related to water use.  These
are payments to the Province.  And you’ll
see the numbers there.  They average, you
know, in a range close to 20 million dollars
a year over the period for Muskrat Falls and
about six million for Churchill Falls.

In addition, there’s a very large
investment in Churchill Falls.  It is
producing preferred dividends in the range
of about six million dollars a year.  Those
also are a potential source of mitigation.

Returning back to that whole issue of
where we – how we deal with Hydro’s equity
returns.  In the industry generally, those
returns are pegged at the cost that a
utility needs to pay in the market to
acquire equity.  It’s a little different
with a Government entity. They’re not
issuing equity.  It’s not uncommon and it’s
the case here that a proxy rate is used to
set that return.  It’s set here based on
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Newfoundland Power’s return, not Hydro’s
cost or the Province’s cost per se.  That’s
at 8.5 percent.  That’s a fairly typical
rate for electric Crown corporations in
Canada.  There’s some movement around that
probably, but I don’t think you can look at
that rate and say that it’s outside of a
fairly narrow band that would constitute the
norm.

The key thing is that – is for Hydro to
retain sufficient – or to continue earning
sufficient funds from operations to support
what’s called self-sustaining status, the
principal contribution to that is return on
equity.  So, the lower the level of equity,
the lower those funds are.  The higher the
level of equity, the higher those funds are.
So, the key determination is really funds
from operation, but the key driver of that
key factor obviously is equity level, and of
course, the equity return.  So, what you do
when you do these kind of analyses is look
for – you look at both the level of equity
and the return it’s earning.  25 percent is
a typical target.  Eight and a half percent

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 39

is a fairly typical return level.
All of that says that on the whole, all

else equal, Hydro should be able to maintain
self-sustaining financial status.  Which
means what?  That means that the debt
markets are not assuming that it has to rely
on government financial support to meet its
ongoing needs.  It stands on its own two
feet to make – to meet its obligations
through its revenues.

25 percent, not an uncommon target, but
it is an uncommon achievement.  Rates are
often lower.  Hydro’s is at 19 percent.
Some are even well below that.  The issue
becomes, I think from our perspective, not
setting the rate so much because I think the
Province needs to determine that because
what will be required in the future for the
financial markets to consider Hydro as self-
sustaining, that’s not necessary a static
process.  That number will change as
circumstances in the industry change and as
circumstances at Hydro change.

So, rather than picking a number, which
we think is certainly the Province’s
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business, and again the hard part of the job
that it faces, we just looked at what a
change would do.  Would it make a difference
if a change is possible?  We looked at a
level of 20 percent compared to the 25, and
interestingly, it shows that you would get
about 100 million more in the earlier years.
And remember now, the earlier years is where
we have fewer sources of mitigation.  So
it’s kind of attractive to move that
forward.  But if you do so, it’s important
to remember that on the whole, across the 20
years, the total amount available will go
down.  So, a change from 25 to 20 percent
does not produce more mitigation in total.
It produces a little bit less.  However,
what it does do is it has the potential to,
in effect, in practice, to capture some of
what will become available later out of a
larger pot and move some of it forward to
earlier years.  And we’re going to show some
charts in a little bit that will give a
sense of the advantage there in doing so.

As I said, there are Provincial
implications here.  You know, Hydro does not
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issue its own debt.  The Province is
standing behind Hydro’s debt.  So, if Hydro
is not self-sustaining, then it will have
implications for all debt that the Province
issues that is not specially purposed and
isolated somehow from the Province’s overall
credit standing.

As I said, there’s no single right
answer.  Today’s right answer is tomorrow’s
wrong answer.  So, it’s a tough issue to
decide and again, I think the Province is
going to need to -- have to wrestle with
that issue, taking into account what is its
tolerance for risk, financial risk, based on
Hydro’s self-sustaining or not status.  What
are the Province’s provincial goals and what
are the Province’s other financial needs and
how will an adverse impact from a non-self-
sustaining Hydro affect them?

I think the broad – there’s a whole
range of answers the Province can come up
with there.  It’s going to depend on not
just what we want to do with mitigation or
what the Province wants to do with
mitigation, but potentially how it

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 42

structures its financing and certainly the
rates it may be facing to acquire financing
in the future.

(10:15 a.m.)
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. In your report, you also address the issue

of depreciation as a potential source for
rate mitigation.  Can you outline what you
found with respect to depreciation?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. We understand that Hydro’s methods and lines

have recently been reviewed at the Board.
We did not see substantial room for
extending them consistent with maintaining a
strong relationship between depreciation
amounts recovered and the actual operating
lines of assets.  And moreover, in the event
of the PPA and the TFA, those rates are
fixed and they’re a function of firm
obligations that Hydro has for payments and
they’re also underlying the financing
agreements that support the debt that is
involved in financing the LCP.  So they’re
not subject to change in any event.

There has been an argument that well,
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you know, you could sort of change them in a
way off the books.  We could attribute to
mitigation an amount that would be produced
by using different methods, non-straight-
line methods, let’s say, and the Province
could pay per – or Hydro could pay per the
two agreements, the PPA and the TFA, but
calculate the amount that the difference
would – in a non-deform of depreciation
would produce and return that to mitigation.

I guess we sort of – here’s the
position we reached on that.  That’s just
another way of the Province giving back a
pot of money.  We have already I think
identified pretty much the maximum amount,
subject to this Hydro return issue.  So, if
the Province is going to give more than
that, I don’t think it’s needed to kind of
tie that to a depreciation change.  That’s
just a matter of what the Province can
afford because either way, it’s not coming
from a change in the payments that Hydro is
going to make or customers are going to
make.  So, it’s coming out of the Province’s
pot somehow or another.
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So, we decided that that really didn’t
change the question in front of the
Province, which is ultimately how much can
we afford to give.  So, we did not pursue
those alternate methods because we thought
that calculation would really end up only
having hypothetical and not practical value.
That’s where we came out on depreciation.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. And also with respect to depreciation, you

were reasonably satisfied that the service
lives and the methodology used were
appropriate for an electric utility?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. We did, and you know, there’s a range there

too and when we looked at the ranges, we see
them as far out within the reasonable ranges
as we think it’s reasonable to go and if
there is any movement, it would not be
substantial enough to make a difference.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. The last topic you addressed in your report

under Financial Opportunities was a
potential rebate of harmonized sales tax
payments for domestic customers.  Could you
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just explain what that is?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah, I will.  I’m going to first say that

we really didn’t want to get into the tax
game because once you do that, there are a
lot of options, like a brand new tax that
doesn’t exist.  So we sort of tried not - we
define that as pretty much outside the box
we were looking at, but having done that it
is the case that the province has made
concessions with respect to those taxes in
the past, so we wanted to observe just, in
effect, for the record, that the provincial
portion of payments of harmonized sales
taxes by Hydro and Newfoundland Power will
get to and above $50,000,000.00 a year.  So
there are dollars there that are
substantial, and those are dollars that – or
that is a source in the past that has been
used with the specific intent of changing
net electric rates to customers in the
province.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. And again that would be a policy decision of

government if it wished to provide that
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rebate and divert funds from HST back for
electricity rate mitigation?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. That’s correct, and again I think it’s

subject to the same principle, which is
we’ve created a large pot here.  The larger
the pot, the better it looks for rate
mitigation.  Well, the larger the pot, it’s
tougher for the province to figure out how
to do without that money.  So I think we are
– if you look at everything we put together,
you can add, you can subtract, but it’s
really going to come down to, again not at
the risk of the sin of repeating myself,
it’s really going to come down to
affordability from the province’s
perspective.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Okay, now that we’ve talked about all the

financial opportunities, what is the total
amount that would be available to apply to
rate mitigation if all of those funds are
applied to reduce electricity rates?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. This chart shows the yearly amounts and it
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shows that – I think begins to show why
twenty years gives you a very different
picture than does ten years.  These are
annual amounts in millions, and as you can
see, they start in the range of 200 and end
up more than doubling if we look out through
2039.  We talked a little bit about
contribution to them.  I want to kind of
show you how you build that contribution
mountain.  If you begin, this the LCP
dividends and water.  Those are combined in
here, but, obviously, the dominant source of
those are the LCP dividends.  If you add
Hydro dividends, you see they make a
contribution, but they’re not – this is
still more the Appalachians where I come
from, it’s not the Rockies.  There you see
the Churchill Falls dividends.  Every bit
helps, but as this shows, it’s just a bit.
Muskrat Falls, a little bigger contribution,
but still it’s not fundamentally changing
the path.  I’m going to talk about the
operational changes that we identified which
largely consist of integrating Nalcor and
Hydro operations.  Those are not immaterial,
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but they’re also not – they are not, I think
it’s fair to say, game changers.  Then we
had a final group that were some non-labour
contributions for LCP and O & M that we
added in.  So I think this pretty
dramatically shows kind of where the large
sources are, and it also shows that with
respect to all of them, except for labour
and the non-labour O & M, they’re
substituting dollar purposes rather than
producing new dollar savings.  It’s the last
two categories that are really new dollars
or new dollars avoided.  The other way to
look at it is rate reduction.  I’m going to
show you the mountain building now.  I think
this is kind of the icecap melting.  This
shows you total reduction in cents per
kilowatt hour, and we picked out three areas
there to show you where we start, where we
are roughly at the end of the ten year
period of the reference, and at the end of
the twenty years that we studied.  That
shows you where we are if Hydro’s current
projections without mitigation were to
apply, and these numbers are probably
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somewhat different now.  I think Hydro, like
everybody else, you know, is always doing
annual budgets, they’re making adjustments
to budget, so these were the numbers when we
did our work, but I would expect and hope
that they’re different now.  That shows you
where we get with LCP dividends and water,
and as you can see, we still got a pretty
big jump and then a flat.  If you were to
look at a normal rate path, you would expect
to see a gradual rise.  All else equal, you
might see a rise from the current day going
up at the rate of inflation.  You see here,
we sort of produce something – we produce a
line that’s flatter than that.  It stays
roughly the same across the whole twenty
years, which means, in effect, you’re not
seeing what rates would ordinarily do in a
utility that’s in a situation normal kind of
status.  Again these are going to show the
same thing as the mountain charts did.
They’re going to show you that after we take
account of those dividends, we’re not
melting much more ice off that iceberg.  So
that shows two things.  Again the major
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source of getting rates down with the
dividends, and two, if there is a way to
move some of the later benefits where we
have the flat line forward, then we could
produce a line that would look much more
like a utility whose future costs are
subject principally to inflation as opposed
to other major factors that drive rates.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Okay, turning now to the next area that you

focused on, which was the potential of
integrating the existing Hydro structure
with the existing Nalcor power supply part
of Nalcor, could you describe what your
recommendation is and how you went about the
work to come to that finding?

MR.ANTONUK:
A. Yes.  We examined large sets of data about

staffing and costs from management and we
focused on organization, functions,
activities, and resources.  I think there
was a suggestion, and maybe I’m being
unfair, but not totally, that we were driven
from a cost reduction only perspective
without consideration of mission, and that’s
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really quite unfair.  We’ve been here for a
fair amount of time now.  I think we
understand mission, we respect mission.  We
considered it – here’s the difference, we
didn’t take it for granted.  Nalcor’s
mission, if it changes, it’s not up to us,
but I don’t think we were compelled to kind
of accept the mission as is.  I think we
were compelled to look at different kinds of
structures, different kinds of operations,
and we did that.  We did that respecting the
current mission, but again as I said, we did
not do it under the presumption that that
mission will continue, or if it does, it’s
even possible to determine how to design an
organization around aspects of that mission,
either speculative or far off.  So we gave
mission due consideration in my view.  What
we did conclude effecting essentially total
integration between power supply and hydro
would produce a unified and more effective
operating entity.  It would create a
structure much more typical of a small
vertically integrated utility.  It would
eliminate duplication in technical,
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operating, corporate, and support
organizations.  Most dramatically, on a
percentage basis, affecting executive
positions and least dramatically affecting
bargaining unit positions.  It also, and
I’ll get to that a little bit later, would
leave Nalcor free to pursue other elements
of its mission through other designs, other
organizations, which we think is not only
possible, but is also consistent with trying
to make electric operations more streamlined
and more cost effective, and I think
operationally ultimately more effective as
well.  There was a major change in Nalcor
structure in 2016 that produced a separate –
it led to a separate Nalcor power supply
organization responsible for completing LCP
and operating Churchill Falls.  We have no
question about the historical reasons for
the separation.  We did not criticize it.
We have understood that to be the case for
most of the time we’ve been working here and
have never criticized it as a way of
providing focus on completing LCP, which we,
like management, and I think most folks up
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here recognized was a major and existential
challenge for Nalcor.  I will say, though,
that some of us lived through the nuclear
phase in the United States which was
similar.  Those plants also posed
existential financial threats, uncontrolled
schedules and uncontrolled cost.  So we’re
very familiar with creating organizations
designed to address those kind of projects
and support that.  I think it’s critical to
say, though, that in our opinion, that’s got
nothing to do with calling something
regulated versus unregulated.  That’s called
“swallowing the monster” in the old days,
and we’ve seen it done.  Almost everybody
ended up doing it in the nuclear business
and almost everybody did it, and ultimately
did it successfully within the context of an
existing utility structure as a temporary
solution to a major problem, after which
there was an expectation and a plan to
return to what I’ll call more normal
interruption.  So I’m going to say we
respect the challenges, we understand them,
we don’t question the response to them.  We
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do think that the completion of LCP calls
for a re-examination of whether that
continues to make sense from an optimization
of performance and cost perspective.  We do
recognize that LCP operational requires some
special skills, but they’re not outside the
utility mainstream.  You don’t have to look
at further than Nova Scotia to see them or a
lot of the other provinces, and we don’t see
them as disruptive to or dominating of
management attention.  It adds a requirement
to deal with things through different
skillsets, and I think we took account of
that when we did our work.  Frankly, if you
look at the assets that are now in
operation, Nalcor really looks a lot like a
vertically integrated – I mean, Nalcor and
Hydro together looks a lot like a classic
vertically integrated utility, and one
that’s comparatively small, quite small by
US standards, and even very small by
Canadian standards.  Therefore, typical
circumstances would suggest to us a single
unified organization because that’s what you
see for utilities in that condition, and
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also you would expect a correspondingly
modest level of resources.  You would expect
their resources to be in proportion to the
size of their operation.

(10:30 a.m.)
Nalcor has made a pretty strong case about
its unregulated versus regulated operations.
That, I think, we find a lot less
understandable than the separation that was
made for the purpose of completing LCP.  The
principal problem with regulated and
unregulated are two.  First, we have
facilities whose costs Hydro initially and
retail customers eventually must bear.  They
don’t have a choice, they don’t have
competitive choice.  They can’t avoid those
costs by saying I got a better alternative.
Also they’re losing what customers usually
get always get.  In fact, I don’t think
there’s a case cited either by Nalcor or by
us where it’s not the case where such
facilities that produce margins from off
system sales.  There’s not a case where
those margins are not returned to offset the
cost of the facilities, cost that customers
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are bearing.  That’s quite anomalous and
it’s problematic in our viewpoint too for
reasons I’ll discuss a little bit later.
It’s also had the effect of producing
parallel organizations which has created
redundancy, and redundancy was a principal,
and I think it’s fair to say, the principal
source of our finding that an integration of
utility operations within Nalcor will
produce substantial savings.  We don’t think
the terms regulated/unregulated are really
the right way to look at things. In the US
there is a pretty classic definition of
unregulated.  Here’s what it is, “If I take
generation outside what customers must take,
if I give customers choice in who they can
have, who they can select to provide the
generation portion of their business, they
will pay what the market price is.  They
will make a choice what to pay.  The people
who provide that service who own the assets
will take the risk of building or buying
them, the risk of operating them, and the
risk of making sales from them.  So there
will be market discipline over the prices”.
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That isn’t really the case here.  It is not
correct to call Nalcor’s operation of the
LCP assets unregulated in that sense.  It’s
only unregulated in the sense that there has
to date been a decision to declare that the
usual, the essentially universal principle
of who pays cost and under what
circumstances, won’t apply here.  So I agree
they’re unregulated because by fiat they’ve
been declared as unregulated, but they are
anomalous, they are anomalous in two
critical senses; one, customers must pay
them, it is not a competitive situation, and
regulation exists in the first place as what
– it’s not because we think utilities are
dishonest, it’s not because we think they’re
incompetent, it’s not because we think
they’re conflicted, it’s because their
regulations substitute for competition.
Nalcor does not operate in a competition
with respect to the assets it operates.  It
acts exactly like a monopoly vertically
integrated utility does.  It’s actual cost
flow through rates, end of story.  In fact,
it’s not even that good, it’s not even as
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good as people get everywhere else.  There
is no regulatory review of those costs.
Nalcor passes those costs through with no
review by you, or by any other regulatory
authority.  That doesn’t happen in the
industry.  The only people who don’t have to
have their costs looked at and reviewed are
those who have the discipline of the market
to make sure that those costs are effective.
It’s not the case here, yet Nalcor is
treated like its unregulated in that
respect.  It uses that distinction to argue
that its status makes sense and it doesn’t.
We have a problem not with what’s happened
to date, what’s happened to date has
happened.  If there are any consequences or
repercussions from that, there’s another
proceeding going on that’s designed to
address it.  We’re not worried about
history.  What we’re worried about is going
forward, what’s going to happen, and what’s
going to happen is that if there is not a
change, Nalcor will be empowered to make
capital investments and expend operating
costs without the discipline either of the
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market or of regulation.  You don’t let
Hydro do that.  The province doesn’t let
Hydro do that.  In our view, it’s difficult
to understand why that should be the case
for Nalcor.  There is nothing about them
that makes them infallible.  There’s nothing
about them that makes them better than the
industry, as a whole.  There’s nothing about
them from that perspective that says to us
regulation is less important and less useful
from a customer perspective.  On top of
that, as thing stand now, Nalcor’s financial
success with respect to those assets has two
important characteristics.  If they make
additional investment, they make additional
return.  If additional investment or
additional operating expenses produces more
off system sales, they get the margins from
those sales.  If I’m operating in the market
and I want to make more money by making more
sales, I have to decide whether the
investment I make in assets or the changes I
make in operating cost are worth it.  Are
the benefits going to be in excess of the
cost.  That doesn’t exist for Nalcor because
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every dollar that Nalcor spends get passed
right through.  So basically it has the
opportunity to capture increased margins
from off system sales, and an increased
return on the investment it may take to do
that without being responsible for paying
for that investment.  That’s, I think,
illogical and I think it’s troubling.  Again
you don’t let Hydro do that.  If Hydro were
doing these very same things, you would have
the power, and if you don’t, you should, I
think you do, and virtually every other
utility jurisdiction that is dealing with
vertically integrated captive customers, has
the power to say if you’re going to make an
investment, if you’re going to change
operating costs, show me that on the whole
it’s going to produce reliability benefits,
and if off system sales are a part of that,
show me that the investments and the
operations costs and the increased margins
or decreased margins that result from that
all make sense from one unified perspective.
Where I’m at now is where is the discipline
and where is the oversight of the part that
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says “an investment of this that produces
that much of a change, is it worth it”.
Nalcor does not have the need to worry about
that, or the need, the compulsion to worry
about that because it’s totally up to them.
Do I think they’re going to be dishonest;
no, it’s not a matter of cheating.  It
really isn’t.  It’s just really saying if I
have the free use, if I have the decision of
how much to spend and I’m not responsible
for explaining that expenditure, and I’m
being measured by the margins I’m producing
in off system sales and the returns I’m
producing, is that the kind of thing that
you want done without oversight.  If your
answer is yes, then here’s the next question
I’m asking, haven’t you just made a case for
deregulating Hydro as well.  You don’t rely
on Hydro’s competence, nor does any other
regulator.  You don’t rely on Hydro’s
integrity, nor does any other regulator.
Those almost can be presumed.  Only in rare
cases do you see those burdens failed, but
regulation exists anyway.  Why does it
exist; it exists because if there is not
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competition, there is not the kind of
discipline it takes to keep those capital
costs down, to keep those operating costs
under control, and not to spend those costs
unless the total return from a customer
perspective makes sense.  So that’s why we
have regulation.  We don’t have it in 19
states.  We have it in 31.  Where don’t we
have it.  We have it in the 19 where all
those investment decisions and the cost for
them and the returns from them are totally
at the risk and the benefit of generators.
In the 31 states where we pass things
through on a cost plus basis for vertically
integrated utilities, all of those controls,
all of that regulation exists.  So you can
call Nalcor’s operation of LCP unregulated,
but it fits no definition that I think is
logical from the perspective of why we
regulate utility costs in the first place.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Somebody might say to you, Mr. Antonuk, what

about the role of government.  Government
can exempt Hydro under the legislation from
regulatory review, and they have a public
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policy interest in doing so.  How do you
account for that in your framework?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. I’ve either been in government or working in

an industry regulated by government for
years.  Government, as we all know, can do
whatever it wants, and if you’re from the
United States, you sure see that in spades
right now.  So we don’t deny government the
ability to make that decision.  What we’re
saying is that that decision is contrary to
essentially every state in the US, unless
the government also decides to open up the
market, in which case I’d say let Nalcor and
let Exelon and everybody go for it because
that’s what that’s all about.  I’m just
saying I think that that distinction that’s
been made to the extent its founded on the
notion that Nalcor is different from
regulated operations, either in the rest of
Canada or the US, that’s not correct.
Nalcor is not different.  So government may
decide it wants to be different.  All I’m
saying is if it decides it wants to be
different, it shouldn’t be because they
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think Nalcor is operating any differently
with respect to these assets than Hydro is,
or virtually any other utility in North
America, at least down to the Texas border.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. One thing Nalcor said in its filing on

September 20th was they have oversight either
through the Board of Directors, and I
suppose they didn’t say it, but there could
be oversight by government.  So why isn’t
oversight enough in this situation?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. You know, every utility corporation,

investor and utility corporation in the US,
has a Board of Directors too and those
boards are often comprised by very, very
strong, very independent, and very
questioning business and social leaders and
other stakeholders.  That’s not enough to
mean we don’t need regulation in the US.  I
don’t think that’s the case in Canada either
for the most part.  Base decisions about
making investments in vertically integrated
Canadian crown corporations are regulated.
Again I’m not going to argue with
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government’s ability to go whichever way it
wants.  That’s between them and the voters.
It’s not for me to say.  Our contribution
here is to say that it just simply should be
understood that it’s not correct to say that
the distinction is supported because
Nalcor’s ownership and operation of the LCP
assets puts it in any different situation
from that of the classic vertically
integrated monopolistic utility.  With
respect to its other operations, maybe so,
but that’s not what we’re talking about
here.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Was there anything else you wanted to say?

We’ve covered a couple of your slides there
on the regulatory oversight.  I think we
probably have covered that issue.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes, I did.
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. The next thing I wanted to ask you about

then was Nalcor in its filing on September
20th, as well as its consultant, Power
Advisory, both expressed the view that you
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hadn’t appropriately taken into account its
broad mandate for future generation
development and its role in resource
development.  What is your response to that?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. I got to get to the right slide so that you

all can see what I’m talking about.  The
slide numbering has changed there.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Yes, keep going.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. What number do you have?
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. The numbers have changed from what I have.
(10:45 a.m.)
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes, what’s your number?  There it is.  We

don’t have any reason, nor was it our
mission to critique the energy development
aspect of Nalcor.  I will observe, though,
that it creates a barrier to producing the
operation savings that we’ve identified.  In
addition, I think it’s important to
recognize that that development mission
needs to be looked at very carefully in
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terms of the degree to which it uses captive
utility customers as it was (unintelligible)
backstop for the risk of making investments.
If development would continue to look at
advancing energy projects by transferring
what we consider owner’s risk to customers,
then we think that is troublesome and we
think it—Muskrat Falls is an example of
that, of the problem with that concept.
Doing so, makes risk less transparent when
investment decisions are made.  So if that’s
the notion, then we do have trouble with
executing that way.  Frankly, I’m not sure I
see that as happening because unless energy
development can proceed through arrangements
with other than customers, it’s very
difficult to see how you would ever justify
some massive new investment on that basis of
utility need.  But to the extent there is a
continuing effort to mix responsibility for
payment between customers, captive customers
and others, that would be troubling, so we
think that it is important to keep energy
development on an independent footing so
that we don’t get situations like the one
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we’ve been talking about now.  As I said, if
that mission is to continue, continuing it
under this structure imposes costs.  Those
costs, as we identified, are in the range of
$15,000,000.00 a year.  It’s not clear to us
why there is any need for them to proceed
under the same umbrella and with the same
mixing of resources.  They can, as we
understand it and as we see it, and we don’t
know what those options or those
possibilities are, but trying as best we can
to gage what they might be, from afar
because it wasn’t our job to look at them, I
can’t see why it makes sense to continue to
carry them now in a way that mixes core
utility, captive customer issues with energy
development which I can’t really see the
Province pursuing on any basis other than
market competitiveness.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. So as I understand your answer, first Nalcor

Power Supply does operate and maintain or
will when Muskrat Falls is fully in service,
the generation and transmission associated
with the Muskrat Falls assets, is that
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correct?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. That’s correct.
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. And as I understand what you just said, you

believe that if there is to be future
development, it should be in a separate
entity, not mixed in with the utility that
has responsibility for operating and
maintaining critical assets that supply
customers.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. That’s correct.
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. The next issue that I wanted to ask you

about also comes from Nalcor’s submission on
September 20th and from Power Advisory.
Power Advisory on page 7 believed that your
approach, your mandate from the Board, which
was to look at cost savings opportunities,
was your underlying mandate which influenced
your views about the organizational
structure.  How would you respond tot hat
criticism?

MR. ANTONUK:
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A. As I said earlier, we didn’t pursue savings
at the expense of sacrificing structure or
organizational considerations.  The key
point is that we did not take the current
structure for promoting them as a given and
as we just discussed, we think that you can
create a unified Nalcor/Hydro structure,
promote effectiveness and efficiency without
in any way impairing the ability of the
Province through different structures of
resources and leadership in energy
development.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Can you describe then how you did go about

looking at the potential integration of
Nalcor’s power supply and hydro?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. We used standard accepted and reasonable

industry approaches, some of which members
of the panel have executed as utility
executives and many more of which we have
over 30 years evaluated and seen.  We’ve
lived through engagements whereas as much as
20 percent reductions were announced the CEO
kind of without notice and overnight.  We
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applied a broad range of techniques.  We
applied that understanding what others have
done when they have faced a desire or in
some cases a compelling need to make
staffing changes.  We did not produce overly
prescriptive nor broadly subjective results.
We analyzed carefully what we could based on
extensive interaction, date from interaction
with the parties, and we applied approaches
that we applied before.  We applied
approaches that are consistent with the two
companies for which we’re looking at
staffing right now, even as we did this job
and most critically we applied them through
seven perspectives.  We’ve got seven people,
all of whom have been at this business for
30 or more years.  There’s another one who
is not here, Christine Kozlosky, who has got
a similar level of experience focussed very
specifically on customer service.  We use
five overall approaches.  We looked at
positions that would appear to become
redundant on integration and we talked with
people holding those positions or managing
people who have them.  We looked at existing
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spans of control, how many people, key
executives or key managers would be
responsible for and even middle and lower
level managers and supervisors and we looked
at what they are, as they exist now, and we
looked as best we could at what they would
look like in a new organization, would we be
creating spans that were too great, would we
be putting any individual in charge of an
organization too big to realistically
handle.  We did comparative analysis of
positions and entities.  We looked at work
requirements.  We talked to personnel enough
to understand and know what they did and
what distinguished it.  We talked about it
enough to figure out what distinguished some
of the special technical or technological
requirements associated with Power Supply’s
work verses Hydro’s work and we applied, as
I said, a pretty broad range of industry
experience.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Again, a criticism that has come from the

Nalcor filing is that they really didn’t
properly assess workload requirements, spans
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of control, the risks involved with doing a
restructuring at this point in time.  How
would you respond to that?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. I think one of the first lessons I learned

in utility management because I was a
detailed oriented person, was about what our
management called the myth of perfect
information.  That myth has two aspects, a)
you can’t get it; and b) if you had it, what
difference would it make?  Organization
review and position definition will remain
to implement the changes that we talked
about, but really you have to think about
whether you do that before you even get
started, or do you do that as part of
execution.  Do you begin with the old broad
changes that make sense, do you make some
decisions, do you take some actions and then
do you adjust as you go?  What Nalcor is
really suggesting is what looks like a very
long, very detailed effort before
identifying what’s doable or embarking even
on a path toward doing it.  We thought about
all of that and we really gave serious
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thinking to what needs to be done now to say
are the numbers that we’re talking about
realistic and is the way we’re talking about
proceeding through them logical?  And it is,
we have a high degree of confidence that
this range of reduction is achievable.  The
effort can begin now and in parallel that
the execution of that effort will show that
here or there somebody does have too many
people reporting to him or her.  Some piece
of technical skills is at risk of being
lost.  We only have one person who can do
“X”.  We don’t want that person deciding
it’s time to leave and we certainly don’t
want to, out of uncertainty or fear and we
certainly don’t want that person’s position
to be eliminated.  We thought of those
things and I think we thought about them at
a level that’s consistent with what we’ve
seen other utilities do when they’re making
these kind of changes.  Could Nalcor engage
in a multi-year effort of study and detailed
analysis?  Yeah, it could.  Would it gain
additional information?  Yes, it could.  Do
we believe that the time that it takes to go
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through that is really worth the effort?
Will it produce perfect information?  Will
it really fundamentally change what needs to
be done or how?  And the answer to us is no.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. So from your perspective what you have found

in your analysis is realistic and achievable
and should be done, is that correct?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. That’s correct.  We do think the reductions

are achievable.  We have seen reductions of
resources at this level between five and ten
percent undertaken without as much analysis
as we have done ahead of time.  Everybody
analyses the changes as they make them.  So
what we propose and the basis on which we
propose it is certainly not out of line with
other similar sized reduction efforts that
we have seen at other places.  And in
addition, when you look at Nalcor’s
resources, there’s nothing we did that’s
even going to bring them into line with
comparative levels of resources at the other
Crown corporations.  We didn’t use that
comparison as a basis for making any
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conclusions, in fact, we didn’t even make
those comparisons until the work was done
because I wanted to make sure that we
weren’t driving our answers to some
comparison in New Brunswick or wherever, but
when we were done and did the analyses, we
certainly saw nothing there that suggests
that we’re leaving Hydro in a position that
looks like it is uncomfortable compared to
those comparative levels.  Granted that’s
only a sanity check, but when we were all
done, I think that was the fine thing that
said to us what we’re doing here is not
dramatic, it’s not disruptive, it’s not
major.  It’s a pretty minor reduction and it
also affects primarily people for whom
things like looking at work management
requirements is not appropriate, that’s a
lot more, that makes a lot more sense when
you’re talking about reductions in people
whose work is measured by units of work,
number of calls and answered, number of
service calls, you know, the reductions
we’re talking about affect that group of
employees only at a fairly small level.  Our
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reductions are primarily at levels where
people’s work is not measured by those sorts
of metrics.  These are supervisory
management and executive positions whose
work is not really covered or coverable by
those kind of measures in the first place.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. If you go to your next slide, Mr. Antonuk, I

believe you’ve mentioned already that you,
what you called your sanity check after you
had done your analysis, you did compare
Nalcor to other peers and you selected four
Crown corporations.  Was there anything you
wanted to say about what that benchmarking
did after you had done your own analysis?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. No, I think what this slide does, it just

lays out a little bit of the detail and
shows where Hydro stands, first of all right
now relative to size.  Hydro is small, even
by the standard of Canadian Crown
corporations; and secondly, the ratios that
we calculated leave from an executive level,
leave Hydro still substantially over the
norm and leave them comfortably over the, at
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or over the norm with respect to numbers of
employees.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Madam Chair, I notice it’s 11:00, but if we

could finish this one topic which is the
Nalcor Hydro Integration and then take the
break, would that be suitable?

CHAIR:
Q. Sure.
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. If we go now then to how much savings would

be produced by the integration of a Nalcor
power supply and the Hydro functions that
you looked at?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes, well the numbers are 113 and certainly

a) is it won’t be 113 when it’ done, we
recognize that.  We have a very high
confidence level that that number is more
likely to be somewhat higher, as opposed to
be somewhat lower and many of those
positions are at higher compensation levels
within both Nalcor and Hydro, so they tend
to have a more than average impact on salary
reproductions given the level of people
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involved.  It will take a short period, some
changes can happen right away subject to,
obviously the human issues that have to be
addressed when you’re making these kind of
changes.  Some of it can happen by
attrition; maybe most of it can happen by
attrition, that’s a function of the period
to put it into place.  We also recognize and
have stated explicitly that we need to be
careful to assure a phase-in to steady-state
and LCP operation.  You will see that most,
not only but most dramatically I think
expressed in our report in this section
deals with LCP O&M expenses.  We see initial
savings of about 13 million and increasing
to the range of 21 million beginning in
2023, so that shows you that we sort of
overall have assumed an implementation
period that extends out into 2023 and there
may be individual cases where—they should be
few and far between where even a longer
period might be necessary for particular
skillsets.  And as I said, even with those
reductions, we’re not looking at numbers
remaining that or are troubling either by
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reference to other Crown corporations or by
anything we saw in analyzing resource needs
here.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. The last question that I have for you on

this issue has to do with the executive
structure at Nalcor.  Nalcor filed a
separate report by Power Advisory with
respect to your analysis of the executive
structure and how I wanted you to have the
opportunity to respond to that and to
express your view about how you did the
analysis of the executive structure.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. There are a lot of words to get through to

look at the filing that responded to us on
this issue, but I’m going to tell you this,
I think it was pretty clear we were
counting, as executives, vice presidents and
above.  If I had seen a reason to change, I
would have.  The definitions as I inferred
them to be from looking at the annual
reports of each of their comparators are
pretty classic and pretty simple really,
pretty straight forward.  I think there
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seemed to be some fussing over whether we
use the term “officers” or “executives”.  I
hope nobody was confused into thinking that
our analysis was an intent to determine what
legal responsibilities people had as opposed
to their operational responsibilities.  I’m
going to be surprised if anybody really
didn’t understand that.  Here’s the bottom
line.  Power Advisory put in some
organization charts.  If you use those
organization charts and you count vice
presidents above and you count what we came
up with, well they match.  There may be one
difference here or one difference there.  I
only gave credit for one general account, so
I started out as a lawyer and frankly in
fairly small organizations there’s really
only one lawyer who is a true executive, the
others are really specialists in a certain
area, even though they might have a general
counsel of this or of that title, but really
when you’re all done, if you count their
organization charts and you count our
numbers, they match and we’re not talking
about a variance of 1.2 over 1, we’re
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talking about variances of 4 and 5 over 1.
So even if I went and started making fine
tuning adjustments, those ratios aren’t
going to change, I mean, there’s no way to
conclude anything, other than Nalcor/Hydro’s
number of officers is far, far out of line
with what we’ve seen throughout the US and
because that’s an area where you might
expect some differences, we’ve looked and
it’s far out of line with Canadian Crown
corporations.  They seem to have tried to
create different constructs for measurement.
I don’t understand why or what the point is
of those.  I can’t really respond to those
other than they didn’t make any sense to us.
In addition, they started talking about
things like location, span of control and
compensation as factors that need to be
considered.  Well I don’t understand why
that’s true and I tell you in doing that,
I’ve looked at executive organization now
for 30 years at the largest US holding
companies down to cooperatives that served
one town in Colorado.  I think I’ve seen the
whole range.  Those factors are never things
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that anybody ever discussed to me as
relevant in deciding who is going to be an
executive in charge of this function, verses
this function, verses this function.  Maybe
there’s some pedantic reason for doing all
that was done.  From an operational
perspective we counted them the right way,
we measured them the right way and we
compared them the right way and even if you
go to some other method, I just don’t see
how you could ever come close to a
conclusion that the number of executives
that Nalcor and Hydro is in the ballpark.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. One thing just to make clear on the record,

the information you used for the charts in
your table were from the annual reports for
the pair of groups that you selected
generally?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. They were the most recent annual reports and

we also did Internet searches to make sure
that there was no indication that there were
executive positions that might not have been
listed in the annual reports, and in one
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case, I think we found that there were and
we added those.  So I think if the one
material difference, I think, that existed
between counting from what they provided and
what we provided is we found four more vice
presidents in a chart that apparently
required one of the utilities to report
compensation of all the executives, so we
found, I can’t remember the number, three or
four more vice president titles in that
listing and we added them to our count.  So
we supplemented it by research, the point
being we only found once case where that
research indicated that there was reason to
mistrust the annual report as a complete and
authoritative source.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. And the last question that I have before the

break, I understood from your answer that
you used the term “officers” interchangeably
with executives in your report, that you
were talking about and considered those
called vice president and above, is that
correct?

MR. ANTONUK:
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A. I did in doing this and, again, I’ve always
done this from an operating perspective, not
a legal responsibility perspective which is
really what you get into when you’re using
the word “officer” in a technical term.  You
know, I’ve sat with the heads of most of the
major holding companies in the US and they
say “officers”, they say “executives”, I say
“officers”, they say “executives”.  When
we’re talking in an operational sense, I
don’t think anybody would recognize that
distinction as meaningful.  I respect the
fact that the term “officer” in a legal
sense has a different definition, but again,
I’m not sure how anybody could have thought
we were talking about legal responsibilities
here verses what they run.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Okay, thank you.  Sorry we went over a

little bit.
CHAIR:
Q. That’s fine.  We’ll reconvene, we’ll try to

make up a little—well 11:35 we’ll be back.
(OFF RECORD - 11:05 A.M)

(RESUME – 11:37 A.M.)
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CHAIR:
Q. Back to you, Ms. Greene.
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Thank you.  Now Mr. Antonuk, I wanted to

move to the next area that Liberty did
review for the Board for the reference, and
that was the potential, whether there was
any potential cost savings and rate
mitigation opportunities arising if Hydro
assets, assets own by Hydro, were either
outright transferred to Newfoundland Power,
or whether there was a change in operating
responsibility for Newfoundland Power to
assume responsibility for certain of Hydro’s
assets.  Can you explain to the
Commissioners what the results of your
analysis showed?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes, we early in Phase 2 looked at asset

transfers and the reason was if you make an
operational transfer the cleanest way from a
future operation’s perspective is to move
both the assets and the other resources it
takes to accomplish that function.  The
problem is that the way rates are structures
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would cause the assets transferred to have a
higher return and that would have a negative
effect.  We actually even thought about
transfers the other way, you know,
intuitively might think if transferring to
Newfoundland Power is more expensive than
transferring from Newfoundland Power should
cause a break, but typically speaking when
an investor and utility is transferring
assets, they are transferred at a multiple
of book value because it is perceived in the
industry that they have a market value that
is higher than that.  So if you attach any—I
don’t want to say reasonable markup, if you
attach any typical markup for transfers, you
would produce an increase in rate base if
Hydro were paying 1.5 times the value, 1.7
times the value, which are not atypical
numbers, then Hydro’s rate base would be in
effect increased enough to wipe out the
lower capital cost advantage you would get,
so it really didn’t make sense transferring
in either direction from a cost reduction
perspective.  Not a surprising result, but
Phase 2 we went actually through the math to
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demonstrate that.  Therefore, we looked at
transfers of operational responsibility
which by definition have, they have inherent
kind of value reducing characteristics.  One
is whoever picks up operational
responsibility without assets has no way to
make money for doing it, so they would, if
it were Newfoundland Power, for example,
pick up additional risk, additional
responsibilities.  In a typical way, those
are handled just through a kind of a fee
base structure for providing the services.
Obviously that fee would eat into any
savings you would achieve.  In addition, you
in effect have two entities who have to
cooperate pretty closely and provide any
planning and execution of the activities
involved.  In the best of circumstances
that’s not a perfect situation.  So
nevertheless we looked, we saw some, based
on again very good cooperation from both
Hydro and Newfoundland Power, and again, in
an area that’s kind of difficult to talk
about, when you think about it, for them.
It wasn’t for us, we found it kind of
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interesting but that’s because it wasn’t our
operations and assets, I guess.  We saw some
potential savings, but there were a lot of
uncertainties, a lot of barriers, and it
just did not appear that when you really cut
through the numbers and look at the
requirements involved, that the kinds of
numbers we could generate were sufficient to
warrant taking the risks and dealing with
the transition issues, which were many.  So
ultimately we did not find merit in doing
that.  In a way that was surprising with
respect to retail.  I think going in that
looked like a very, very promising
opportunity, less so on the other areas, but
even those others were worth looking at, but
even with respect to retail, we just didn’t
see the numbers that suggested that the
folks should go through, you know, the
detailed effort it would take to detail the
transfer, work out an operating agreement,
deal with differences in labour agreements
and a whole host of issues.  What we did
determine was that that I still can’t work
these slides very well is what we
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determined.  Okay.  We see two other areas
that were not certainly possible for us to
look at in the time we had, but based on
discussions with Hydro about Newfoundland
Power, with Newfoundland Power about Hydro,
we saw two other areas that we think it
would be appropriate for close attention to.
I’ll take them in reverse order first.
There’s a lot of money being planned for
capital spending by the two entities
together in the next five years.  You all
have a process for dealing with that and as
I understand it, that process has either
already begun or will soon be, so what we
were trying to do there is just to highlight
the importance of making sure that that
process is carried out in a close and
careful way and I think if we’re really
asserting anything different from what you’d
do otherwise, I think it’s the same
conundrum we faced when we did the
reliability report, we sort of looked at
reliability first and economy second when we
were doing work early here.  You can see on
our reliability report, we now have kind of
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put them almost on an equal footing, you
know, because we see the circumstances
involved now economically and pricewise and
we think that has a direct bearing from a
reliability perspective what you should be
spending money on or at least when should
you be deferring, should you be reducing.  I
think those questions are a lot closer call
now and I guess what I’m really commending
to you all is that I think the same kind of
review of the capital programs are
appropriate, given where we are pricewise is
really the point.  And then the second is
that you will see in Hydro’s filing they
talked about examining efficiency.  They
talked about things, I’m going to call it
work management, their term may have been
somewhat different.  We saw those as
potentials too and I thought it was
encouraging that Hydro was saying the same
thing.  So we think looking very closely and
carefully at efficiency, directly through
reduction and resources and secondarily—not
secondarily, also through looking at
technological support too that would allow
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staffing reductions.  We commend that, we
think that’s important, we think that should
be done.  It should be highly visible, but I
want to say to you that we would not propose
those as alternatives to what we have
proposed, we would see those as supplemental
and additional ones and not mutually
inconsistent with what we’re talking about,
and let me say additive is probably the
better word.

(11:45 a.m.)
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. The last bullet you had there was common

purchasing.  Can you please explain what you
meant by that?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. There is significant differences between the

processes that Hydro must employ to make
purchases verses those of Newfoundland
Power.  I forget the name of the act that
Hydro has to operate under, but they
restrict Hydro’s ability to do the kinds of
things that I believe Newfoundland Power
does and that we find typical in the
industry in terms of negotiating with
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potential vendors.  The use of alliances
with contractors, a combination of volumes
of the two entities to produce discounts
based on volume we think have potential.  I
don’t think we saw 10 million as likely, but
I think we saw a number that’s in the range
of four to five as fairly promising.  It was
difficult to make a lot of progress on those
when you start from the premise that you
really can’t do, you can’t work that way
here now because it would not be smart to
make Newfoundland Power go to the Hydro
approach, nor is Hydro allowed to go to the
Newfoundland Power approach, so I think the
key issue there is can the two working
together objectively, candidly and without,
you know, kind of a natural defensiveness
that every utility has about the high
quality and beauty of its own practices, can
they work together to identify enough to
make it worthwhile, saying whether a change
in the restrictions on Hydro would produce
benefit.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. So at most you would recommend further
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analysis of that, is that correct?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. That’s correct and I think that analysis

should proceed, it seems like the Purchasing
Act, whatever its proper title is, is a
pretty significant given, so I think our
view is that it’s not even realistic to
start thinking about whether it’s worth
considering that change until the
preliminary work shows that that change
really would have substantial value.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. The next area that you addressed and that I

would like to address with you is your
review of the Lower Churchill Project
operating a maintenance cost which was one
of the specific issues that the Government
had asked the Board to consider in the
reference questions.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. I think the base point I want to make there

is that the estimate that we used, which was
the October 2018 estimate, we found was a
pretty solid reference point.  There were
earlier estimates.  This estimate is
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different from those.  We were happy
starting from that as a solid foundation.  I
think the biggest difference was the level
of conservatism that was built into that
estimate for the early phase of LCP
operation.  We made a number of adjustments
that I think are best described saying there
are certain things you can do earlier or
certain things you can reduce, like the
amount of contingency that’s in the
estimate.  It’s pretty high.  It’s a new
asset, there are still some uncertainties,
but you know, frankly we thought it could be
lower, so I think we saw a number of
measures that could reduce the conservatism
in the estimate without really criticizing
the estimate, but certain elements of
conservatism that could be removed without,
in our view, increasing the risk to
operation of the facilities.  So we found
some reductions there, they were about 12
million dollars a year and they ended up
affecting both internal staffing, use of
contractors and a variety of services and
also the reducing amount of contingency.  I
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think the bottom line is there was a lot of
uncertainty and concern about that estimate.
I think we’re pretty comfortable that it’s
the best estimate that can be made now.  As
I said, we believe these reductions to it
are appropriate as well, but I don’t think
we would kind of say that the stakeholders
here should be considered about whether that
estimate is just fundamentally all for or
not good, so –

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Now that we have finished reviewing the

areas where you identified savings, if we
could just have a quick look at the next
slide which shows the summary again.  This
is the same slide we saw earlier and again
it brings all of the cost savings or
potential revenue offsets together to show
the impact, is that correct?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. That’s correct and it really, more than

anything else, was designed to set up the
next slide which does a little more
dramatically show the, we were calling it
the camel hump, looks a little more like a
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masa (phonetic) now, but the point is there
you see we have a, even with mitigation,
applying all the sources we identified,
there is still a sharp drop.  Then, despite
inflation, there’s no increase, and then we
have a drop, so is there a way to manage
that line to make it look a little more like
the kind of steadily slowly increasing line
you would typically see in utility rate
forecasts that are driven principally by
normal inflation, which is a point I think
we discussed before, but this chart just
shows it a little more dramatically.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Moving on then to other areas that you have

been asked to review, the first is the
regulatory framework and you did address
that before the break with respect to your
view is that aspects of Nalcor Power’s
supply should be regulated.  First, as you
state here on this slide, it is your opinion
that future capital and operating expenses
of the Lower Churchill Project should be
regulated by the Board, is that correct?

MR. ANTONUK:
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A. Yes.
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. And can you explain very briefly why?
MR. ANTHONUK:
A. Yes, it’s for the same reason you regular

Hydro’s expenses and we’re talking here
about just a huge asset from an economic
perspective.  You should regulate it because
there is no competitive market for us that
will provide discipline over the amount that
can be charged for those assets and it’s
that lack of market discipline that is the
very fundamental foundation of regulation in
the first place.  It applies to these assets
we’re talking about here, just as it does to
Hydro’s assets.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. And customers have to pay for all of the

capital and operating expenses, is that
correct?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. That’s correct.  It’s the inclusion of those

costs in rates for customers who do not have
competitive choice and therefore, cannot
avoid them.
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GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Similarly you recommend that the profit that

will go to Nalcor from its share of excess
sales, the sales to the export market, you
recommend that that also be applied to the
revenue requirement that customers pay and
that it be regulated, is that correct?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes, and certainly Nalcor and Hydro can and

will speak for themselves, but I think that
they’re in agreement that that’s the
universal practice and they acknowledge, as
we would concede—or they state as we could
concede that it’s up to the Province to
decide whether it wants to follow that
universal model or diverge from it for
whatever reason it sees fit.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. One of the points you make on slide 36 is

that the conflict between Nalcor Power
Supply and Hydro, which now exists and which
would not exist with regulation, would you
like to expand on that for a moment?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah, the conflict is that if Nalcor makes a
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decision on capital investment or operating
costs with respect to the LCP assets that is
unsound from a customer rate perspective,
they bear no consequence for that.  In fact,
they gain to potentially to benefits, one
they will earn a return if the investment is
included in rate base, and two, if it
increases all system sales, they earn all
the margins from that.  So the essence of a
competitive marketplace is that if I’m going
to make a decision on any change in how I
fund or use an asset, I’m doing it on the
basis that the market will give me a reward
for it, not on the basis that I don’t have
to worry about recovery of my costs, I can
only gain by export sales or returns that
become part of Hydro’s and customer rates as
a result of making that investment, so
there’s kind of a split between the
responsibility for bearing the cost of the
asset and where the benefits of it go, and I
think for the very same reasons you look at
whether Hydro’s investment and operating
decisions and costs are appropriate from a
customer perspective, it’s essential that
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you do the same thing for these assets.  And
I’m going to distinguish that from potential
future development that the Province might
pursue on what I will call a market basis
where those investments will stand or fall
based on arrangements made in the
marketplace.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. If we go to slide 37, again I think you

probably covered all of those points when
you discussed regulated, the distinction
between regulated and non-regulated that
Nalcor has made.  Is there anything you
would like to add there?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. No, I think I covered all of those.
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. So if we turn to the last issue that you

were asked to review for the Board, which is
to do with Nalcor Energy Marketing and what
would be best utility practices that exist
in the industry with respect to energy
trading and export sales and purchases, so
could you please outline for the
Commissioners what your analysis showed
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Nalcor Energy Marketing does and whether
this is typical or not typical in the
industry?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Well I think a lot of attention was focussed

on creating--Nalcor Energy Marketing is a
separate entity, I would argue that that has
nothing to do with the real issues.  The
issues that has to deal with are primarily
taxation, as I understand it, I’m going to
talk a little bit about risk.  I think maybe
theoretically there’s some issue there, but
I think in practical purposes that it’s not
correct to conclude that’s material.  The
real issue is who controls it.  There are a
number of cases where utilities have
operating subsidiaries.  I’ve managed
regulatory regulations for, I think, seven
or eight call (phonetic) subsidiaries when I
was working at Pennsylvania Power Light
Company, I had the regulatory side of
managing those.  They were also separate
corporations.  Every penny of their expenses
was reviewed by the Commission.  Every penny
that they made, they changed the utility who
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was regulated and every penny that they made
that was to a third party to offset costs
was regulated.  It didn’t make any
difference.  The real issue is where the
costs and the revenues for the assets that
are used and the returns that are produced
lie, so I don’t really have an opinion so
much on creating it as a separate entity, it
just doesn’t matter, that’s not an issue
that’s relevant to what we do about
regulating it or dealing with its margins.
The analysis that Power Advisory presented
about this whole issue is kind of upside
down.  They compare Nalcor a lot to the 17
markets that are unregulated.  The real
issue is the 31 that operate on a vertically
or integrated basis where the assets used
for all system sales are paid for by
customers, which is the case here.  We have
actually audited many of those over the
years and by the way, this isn’t just
happening in the electric business in the
US, it’s even more prevalent in the gas
business because gas companies have to
design their systems to the coldest day of
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the year and they tend to have a lot more
excess because the consequences of cold
weather for them are generally much more
severe than they are for an electric
company, so they have a lot of excess
because they don’t have that big data often.
In all 51 jurisdictions, I have to keep
remembering that the disenfranchise voters
of DC have to be respected, in all 51 the
same thing applies.  The operations are
subject to full regulation by the
commissions, not before the fact, I think
this whole argument of nimble and all that,
I get it, but nimbleness exists wherever
this function is located, it’s not more
nimble if it’s unregulated.  In fact, it
tends to be a lot more risky sometimes, but
anyway, the point is here that—and we know
this because we have done these audits and
we know what other states do because we have
been asked by several states to help design
their programs for regulating these sales.
Commissions can look at the organization
that conducts the activities, they can look
at the staffing, they can look at the
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controls, they can look at the risk
management policies, they can determine what
kinds of hedging are appropriate.  There is
actually the same or greater level of
regulation of conduct there than you see
with respect to the base conduct of things.
We’ve seen how TND is regulated, we’ve seen
how customer service is regulated.  The
number of things that Commissions do to
effect trading while it’s off in a fairly
small portion of the action are much more
intrusive if you want and inappropriately
so, in my opinion, so the notion that
somehow the model for the US is not
regulating trading, that’s what off the
mark.  Trading is regulated as robustly, as
completely and with as much force and
authority, if not more, as any other aspect
of utility regulation.

(12:00 P.M.)
It is the case that Canada does not, on the
whole, regulate as much, but I’m going to
tell you that I think that’s, to me, largely
a function of the development of the
industry here.  Our industry developed
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primarily through private enterprise.  We
have extensive government supported rural
electrification cooperatives, if you will,
but the fundamental development of the
industry in our country is private industry,
which is a lot like Alberta, for example,
which is a bit of an anomaly for Canada.
Here utility operation kind of was a,
electrification, if you will, was kind of a
government responsibility and benefit, so
you have a whole different starting point
here.  You have the utilities as in effect
the government, so it doesn’t surprise me
that Canada is different and here’s where I
think it’s most relevant about Canada, it’s
not where it was or is or even where it’s
going.  I think if you look at every
development that has been made in Canadian
regulation in these areas, it is in the
direction of more regulation.  That’s true
in New Brunswick, it’s certainly true other
places as well, so I think it is true that
there are some old well-established powerful
government groups that have grown up as
marketers and I think what you’re seeing in
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Canada is occasionally they run into
trouble.  Sometimes it’s the same kind of
difficulty that we’re experiencing here now,
so while I acknowledge that the direction,
that the status of regulation in Canada is
different, I would urge you to consider its
direction.  I would urge you to consider
what I’ve been talking about in terms of
what we see with respect to how Muskrat
Falls is structured, and I think the issue
for you all is what do you think is the
right direction to go.  My view is that
regulation of energy trading has had
tremendous benefits.  It has not reduced
returns; those returns are substantial.  It
has had very beneficial effects on risk.  I
can think of no case where a utility trading
with utility assets has experienced
financial difficulty.  I could name, without
trouble, four or five free-market ones that
have gone bankrupt, so we would give no
comfort to any argument that says that there
is less nimbleness, there is less
capability, that there is less operating
room to move in a regulated, verses an
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unregulated trading operation.  And even if
you don’t want to go there, I think it’s
pretty clear that bar none, there’s no place
in Canada or US that fails to provide the
returns from off system sales to regulated
entities to those who are responsible for
bearing their costs.  I think there might be
one or two cases where there’s kind of a
formula rate process which doesn’t do it
directly, but I haven’t seen anything to
convince me that the returns from off-system
sales are in effect excluded conceptually
from the structures that are created in
establishing those reference point base
rates.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. If you go to your next slide, Mr. Antonuk, I

think you’ve covered the points on that
slide.  Is there anything you wanted to add
before we go to your last slide?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. No.
GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. The last issue with respect to Nalcor Energy

Marketing is your suggestion in your report
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that Nalcor should consider soliciting
whether there’s interest, an expression of
interest as to whether this service should
be contracted out.  Would you please expand
on that?

MR. ANTHONUK:
A. Yes, I want to say two things first.  We’re

not saying that’s what should be the result
and we’re not making any criticism of the
development of the Nalcor Energy Marketing.
That would be a false construct for
analysing this point.  What we’re saying is
that Nalcor Energy Marketing’s operations
reflect a fairly small function.  I saw some
measurement, I forget what it was, it sort
of was relevant to revenues or relative to
size, none of that matters.  An organization
needs to be designed to accomplish the
functions for which its responsible.  It’s
not designed based on the percentage of its
share of revenues or of sales to an entity.
For an organization like this, you design it
to do what it’s there to do, which is to
make off system transactions.  And Nalcor’s
operations are small.  There’s not any way
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to describe them compared to that.  For the
size that we’re talking about now, it is not
unreasonable to expect that Nalcor may find
access to specialist economical.  I will say
this, without criticizing Nalcor Energy
Marketing’s capabilities, there were very
large sophisticated organizations in the US
and some of which operate in Canada as well,
that you can’t make a reasonable contention
or not more sophisticated and more
knowledgeable about US markets, which are
important here to the Nalcor Energy
Marketing.  I don’t know if they’re
interested in working in this market because
this market is different and it’s developing
and it’s not now where it may be some day.
I don’t know what they would charge to work
here, but I will tell you this, Nalcor’s own
analysis showed that for fairly small
trading operations that do not want to
engage in high-risk trading, outside
contract resources were a viable option.
All we’re saying is it’s reasonable to
expect Nalcor to test its own internal plans
and capabilities against what is available
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in the marketplace.  We are not even
suggesting an RFP; we’re suggesting a
solicitation of the marketplace to determine
if there’s enough interest to justify an
RFP, which would actually solicit fee
statements, benefit guarantees, all of those
things.  I don’t know what the decision is
that will result from that, but what I am
saying is that it’s clearly, in our view,
worth the effort to do what Nalcor itself
has said is a logical option for a fairly
small trading operation, and that is to
consider an external source.  It’s really as
simple as that.  And that market is changing
very fast.  I’ll tell you about what used to
be a little company called Tenaska that
nobody ever heard of.  Tenaska is now a 12
billion dollar privately owned enterprise
that is managing assets that are in the
range of 10 to 15,000 megawatts and a lot of
that – some of that is their – are their
assets.  A lot of that is assets they’re
managing for others.

ACES is an organization set up by the
rural electric community in the United
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States.  These are the generation and
transmission cooperatives.  That business in
the US is split between these what are
called G and T’s and those that are
distributors.  ACES was set up quite some
time ago to do these kind of functions for
that community.  Some of those G and T’s are
pretty large and the business of ACES is not
inconsiderable.

So, I think the notion that somehow
Nalcor energy market is either already too
good or too big to explore this alternative
just are not compelling to us.

GREENE, Q.C.:
Q. Thank you, Mr. Antonuk.  That concludes my

questions for this panel, Chair.
CHAIR:
Q. Thank you.  I understand we’re going to go

to Nalcor Hydro for questioning.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Thank you, Madame Chair.  Mr. Antonuk, since

you’ve been the one speaking, I will address
my questions to you, but if somebody else on
the panel is more appropriate to respond,
then I invite that.
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MR. ANTONUK:
A. Thank you.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. So, you have indicated in your slides that

your company or your organization is
familiar with both Nalcor and Hydro through
various assignments that you’ve previously
undertaken for the Board.  Is that correct?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. And that would be primarily Hydro that you

would have looked at, rather than Nalcor?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. No, that’s not true.  I think we spent as

much time with what I’ll call the Nalcor
side when we began.  It was the Nalcor side
prior to the 2016 change, I’ll say that.
But it’s been a – even then, down to meeting
with board members and CEO.  So, I will say
that the primary focus has been on Hydro,
absolutely, but the interaction that’s
produced is what I’m referring to.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Okay.  You haven’t done work for Nalcor or
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Hydro?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. No.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. As part of your previous work or your

current mandate that you’re talking about
now, did you meet with or speak with Mr.
Stan Marshall, the CEO?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. You did?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. When was that?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. I can check.  I don’t remember.  But it was

during the course of this engagement and it
was in relation to this engagement.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. And did you discuss Nalcor’s mandate with

him and how he structured the company as a
result of that?

MR. ANTONUK:
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A. Yes.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. As I read your report and the slides that

you’ve presented, it seems that you have, in
effect, come to the conclusion that Nalcor
is really just a supporting entity for
Hydro.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. No, that’s not correct.  We believe that the

power supply portion of Nalcor is in effect
carrying out activities that are
functionally similar to those of Hydro.  So,
it’s a little narrower.  So, I’m not – I’d
say I’m more tweaking, trying to tweak what
you said than disagree with it.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. The mandate that you were given insofar as

it relates to the corporate structure was
one that was related to costs?  So your view
of the corporate structure was with a view
of determining whether or not there were
cost savings?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. While not compromising operational

effectiveness, certainly.  We were not – we
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were not retained to design an optimum
organization structure, but we were also not
foreclosed from considering alternate
organization structures that would meet
mission while accomplishing cost savings.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Okay, fair enough.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. We just – we didn’t take it as a given, I

guess is what I’m saying.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Okay.  And throughout your report and your

presentation, it’s hard to determine what,
if any, weight you gave to Nalcor’s mandate,
you know, as directed by the Government, and
how that fit into your analysis of this.  I
mean, Nalcor has other mandates other than
power supply.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. I can tell you some observations we have

about that and maybe that can get us started
in a dialogue here.  I think we looked at
the utility related things that Nalcor is
doing and tried to determine whether there
was a more effective way to accomplish those
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without compromising the ability to serve
any other purpose that the Province would
give to Nalcor or to some other entity
besides Nalcor.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. What other purposes are you referring to?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Well, oil and gas or anything else, you

know, and when I – oil and gas was part of
the mandate.  As you say, energy
development.  It’s not clear to me that
they’re necessarily the only things that the
Province might decide or appropriate to
locate somewhere to serve the interest of
the Province.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Okay.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. We certainly didn’t want to do anything that

would leave – that would restrict the
ability of Nalcor to do these other things,
but when it’s all said and done, I don’t
know how we ever could have come up with
anything like that because at the worst, we
say – I think you say, well, you know, put
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them – put that function in something that
stands by itself independently of the entity
that’s planning, operating and charging for
utility type assets.  I’m not sure I’m
helping.  I’m trying the best I can here.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. You’re suggesting creating a new entity to

do what they’re already doing?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Okay.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Or separate – or just give Hydro the

responsibility for utility operations.  You
don’t necessarily need to create an entity.
There’s two entities already basically in my
judgment.  There are two operating entities
anyway.  Really there are kind of three
actually, Power Supply, Hydro and the rest
of Nalcor.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. You just mentioned oil and gas and when you

did your work, oil and gas was considered to
be on the way out, but things have changed.
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Does that change anything for you?
(12:15 p.m.)
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Not from the way I understand it.  I’ll tell

you as I understand it and then this may –
the Province doesn’t tell me what they’re
doing in that regard.  What I understand –
as best I understand it, and I’m willing to
take any correction you can offer, either
hypothetically or actually because I don’t
know.  If there is an intent to keep certain
equity ownership control at Nalcor – we’ve
seen that pretty commonly.  We’ve seen a
number of cases where utilities, for one
reason or another, have had things that
they’re investors in but not operators of.

MR. DASCHBACH:
A. For the longest time it was aircraft

leasing.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Aircraft leasing was a big deal for a while.

We had what we thought was a hugely valuable
undeveloped coal mine at PPL.  Those took
very, very limited time and effort.  They
were primarily financial things.  It
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required financial reports.  Occasionally it
required a lawyer to look at maybe a
potential development agreement.  That was
done by an outside counsel anyway.

So, if what they are is an attempt to
retain something that is an equity ownership
interest of the Province, that’s – those
resources seem to me would be reasonably
small.  I can’t imagine that your Government
doesn’t have some other way to produce those
efficiently through financial accounting,
economic and legal resources it otherwise
has.  And if that’s not the case, it would
surprise me a little bit.  I’m not sure what
it would take; that it would take a material
level of resources at Nalcor to operate
them.  But if it did, nobody told us that
during the study from Nalcor and if they
did, we would have considered it.  But so
the best I can do now is just give you these
general answers.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. If you can look at Slide – it was 24, might

be 36.
MR. ANTONUK:
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A. If you’ve got the caption that might be -
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. “Our approach to cost reduction”.  The

numbers need to be fixed.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah, good call.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. You say there at I guess it’s the fourth

major bullet talking about pursuing
Provincial energy development “can be
pursued through a separate structure and
without imposing on the customers”.
Customers you’re referring to would be
Nalcor’s customers or Hydro’s customers?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah, Nalcor’s costs, Nalcor’s costs for the

LCP assets are borne by Hydro’s customers.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. For the LCP?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Okay.  So is that what you’re referring to

there?
MR. ANTONUK:
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A. Yes.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Not Nalcor’s cost generally?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Oh, fair point.  Good.  That’s a good

clarification.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. And in that, you sort of suggest that

preparing for Churchill Falls marketing
opportunities two decades away -

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. - as if it’s far too early for that.  Is

that your -
MR. ANTONUK:
A. No, not per se.  What I’m saying is that

there is time to examine an initial approach
of using contracted asset management and
doing so would not leave you with
insufficient time to evolve into a different
approach if Churchill Falls availability is
the next major change in the external
marketing responsibilities of Nalcor.

EATON, Q.C.:
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Q. Did you consider sort of other ongoing
things that Nalcor has in the works?  You
know, development of Gull Island for
instance as one of the things mentioned in
the Minister’s mandate letter to Nalcor, and
other projects.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah, well, we considered them – we were not

– nobody from Nalcor identified resource
requirements specific to that role, in which
case we would have assessed them, which is
not to say we would not have and I think we
likely would have said, okay, those can be
done through a separate organization, a new
organization or a Nalcor that’s split off to
do that and a Hydro that now becomes, you
know, the one unified source of utility
operations.

And certainly, preparing for Gull
Island and preparing for Churchill Falls, to
us, and that’s what we’re saying I think in
one of those dashes there, certainly isn’t
worth spending, you know, 15 or 20 million
dollars a year in the extra resources it
takes to run two parallel organizations.
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That’s – I don’t think we were trying to go
much further than that in this area.

You know, most of those people are
operational people.  They have nothing to do
with development of Gull Island or selling
energy out of Churchill Falls.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. So, in terms of integrating Power Supply

into Hydro, was that driven by cost
reduction?  Is that for you?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. No, that was a factor, but I think

integrating management so that you have a
common source of planning that focuses on
customer, optimizing costs and operations
from a customer perspective, that was, I
think, ultimately equally as important.  I
think if we’d have come back and said
“there’s a better – we can improve
performance here by combining the
organizations, but we couldn’t save costs”,
I suspect some people would have said “why
didn’t you do your job?”  But, I don’t see
how the fact that we were looking at costs
foreclosed us from – and it didn’t – from
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looking at what the effect of changes we
were thinking about would have on a lot of
things, like how utility facilities are
planned, how they’re paid for, how they’re
charged to customers, what role the Board
should have.  I would consider our review
integrated from that perspective, always
mindful that the pressing need here is to
find a way to get rates down.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. That was certainly the direction that you

were given, to look for ways to get the
rates down?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. I guess I thought all the rest of that was

implicit in it because we were also asked to
look at regulatory structure.  We were also
asked to look at energy marketing, and I
don’t know that – first of all, I don’t know
that those were necessarily solely tied to
costs.  I think certainly there was an
expectation that we would look at them from
costs.

And as we went through this, you know,
we delivered a Phase 1 report which clearly
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was taking this holistic view and nobody
chastised us for it.  Nobody said we were
doing it the wrong way.  So, we just
continued to do it that way in Phase 2 and
frankly, as someone who’s kind of been in
operations and utility regulation for longer
than I sometimes like to admit, I don’t
think we’ve ever done a job differently.  I
don’t think we’ve ever looked at a utility
without trying to take a holistic view of
costs with what’s companion to costs, which
is service reliability and not cost – and
even cost, it’s not just cost today.  It’s
cost in the long run.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. You made a statement at page 63 of your

report to the effect that there’s no sound
operational reason for maintaining the
distinction.  You didn’t really say why.
Then you went on for almost 20 pages looking
at costs and without getting into other
aspects of that.  Is that the – that it, no
sound operational reason, full stop?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. No.  If you -
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EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Or is it cost?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. I mean, I can look.  I can’t tell you right

now.  I can’t quote from the report, I’m
sorry.  But I think if I look through the
report, I’ll be able to show you a lot of
things that talk about operational issues;
that talk about regulatory structure; that
talk about Board authority.  So, I think
that holistic view is expressed at multiple
locations in the report.  But again, I’ll
tell you, if we didn’t talk a lot about
costs, I think – I will grant you some
people would have said “well, what are you
doing here?”  So, we talked a lot about
costs.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. So, I take it from what you’ve said this

morning that you had people look at this and
based upon your various experience, this is
what you concluded was the best way forward?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Are we talking about the reductions now or

the operating?
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EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Talking about the integration.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Integration, yeah.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. And the impact that that might have.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Okay.  I think I need you to say it again

just to make sure, because I interrupted you
and I apologize.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. You said this morning, I think, that the

model that you’re suggesting, the
integration and the fallout from that, but
it’s part of the integration process, based
upon your experience and the experience of
others, was the best way forward.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. It was applying that experience to the

circumstances here, for sure.  But that
experience has performed an important role
in the perspectives we brought to making
that judgment.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. But would you dispute that others who might
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have similar experience might come to
different conclusions?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. I’d have to say I have a lot of difficulty

with that because I don’t really – I can’t
think of a model that’s like this.  I can’t
think of a model that says that costs are
placed on customers with no choice without
regulatory review and margins go somewhere
else.  I don’t know a model for that.  So,
can others make that judgment?  I suppose.
In my experience, have I seen others make
that judgment?  That’s a no, I think.  I
mean, I haven’t thought about it in that
context and we’ll talk about it and I’ll
make sure we tell you if there’s an
exception in our experience.  But I can’t do
that right now.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. In your Phase 1 report, I think you

indicated that there might be reductions of
about five percent?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Well, I think we’re confident there are

reductions – well, I need to make sure we’re
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referring to the same thing.  Our bottom
line with respect to reductions, is that
what you’re asking about?

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Um-hm.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah, we’re confident that the number we put

forth is a conservative estimate of the
number of reductions to expect.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. And your number now on slide 27 is five to

ten percent?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. No, 113 reflects a range of between five and

ten percent and the point there was that we
have seen a number of reductions in that
range, which we consider a very moderate –
based on our experience, five to ten percent
is a fairly moderate target and achievement
rate to achieve for utilities going through
what’s euphemistically described as right-
sizing.  So that was the reference, the five
to ten percent reference.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Just in terms of that right-sizing, I mean,
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you know, how frequently can you do that and
get five to ten percent?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. That’s hard to answer.  That’s really a

question of what your goal is.  We have seen
reductions much greater than that.  We were
working at a company in New England that
went through a 20 percent at one time.  You
know, could they do 20 percent, then five,
five, five?  No, no.  But what if they had
done five, five, five, five?  Well, they
would have done – they would have done a lot
of fives.  They just did it all at once.
So, an organization that is lean and size
based on a strong focus on staffing
management and resource management certainly
can’t do repeated reductions of five
percent.

MR. CELLARS:
A. Well, I think, John, you’re right.  I think

the question is not how often can you do
that, but how likely is it to do that when
you see an organization that has two
structures like engineering or whatever
discipline you want to pick that’s
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structured essentially identical, doing
identical functions with the same processes
in two wholly different organizations.  When
you’re confronted with organizations that
are structured that way, I think a five
percent reduction is very doable.  Now, if
it’s structured more efficiently, then
you’re right.  You can’t go on infinitum.  I
agree.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. You know, there actually is a model for what

you’re talking about and Kevin reminded me
of it.  We have seen cases where two
utilities come together and by definition
they produce duplicative organizations.  It
is not uncommon to see the first cut be
let’s make a moderate reduction to integrate
the functions, eliminate the duplication and
then following the duplication or the base
elimination of the duplication, then find
another reduction.

So, it’s – there is a precedent for it.
It’s just hard to – it’s just hard to talk
of – to answer your question in a generic
way because it all ultimately depends on the
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circumstances of each company involved.
It’s been done.

(12:30 p.m.)
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Sure it’s been done, but when you go in the

door, do you start off with a five to ten
percent objective, regardless of what you
know about that entity?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. I have not, but -
MR. CELLARS:
A. I don’t think we did that at all.  I think,

to what John said earlier, we looked at the
structure of the organization and looked at
it as almost two separate organizations
doing similar functions and then used that
number as a sanity check in the end.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah.  People have.  I’ve seen it happen,

you know.  I’ve evaluated utilities that did
it.  We were working at a utility on another
matter and it – bang.  It was a Friday and
then on the Sunday, there was a – that was
the basis of the reduction.  We need the
reduction.
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EATON, Q.C.:
Q. That was driven internally by the utility

that wanted the reduction?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Well, that’s an interesting question.  It

was actually driven, they would argue, by
the – what they thought was fundamentally
unfair rate treatment in a rate case.  So, I
would agree with you.  They would disagree
with you.  They would say the commission did
it.  That was the initiating factor.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Was your -
MR. ANTONUK:
A. I wasn’t very sympathetic with the action.

That’s all I’m trying to tell you.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. But was your number in any way driven by the

Government announcement that they were
seeking 20 million dollars in reductions?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. I first became aware of that after we

presented the results of Phase 1, so no.
No, it was not.

EATON, Q.C.:
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Q. So, the change from Phase 1, the increased
number was not driven by the 20 million
dollar amount?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. No, no.  We did look carefully at at least

two announcements and the reason was to see
if a foundation for it was expressed and
that foundation may have included something
that we had omitted.  So, we looked at it.
But I don’t think we saw anything in it that
kind of moved our ball forward.  I’m not
knocking it.  I’m just saying that, you
know, we didn’t find anything in it that
looked like we were missing anything.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. In terms of the reductions, so you said this

morning, it wasn’t clear from your report,
that you did do job analysis, in terms of
deciding – you know, you came up with
numbers?  You said 20 here, 20 there, 17
here.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Not quite.  We did look at and talk about

what people do.  So, I’d say yes, but I fear
you’ve got some more precise definition of
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that term that you’re going to have to give
me for me to take this any further.  We did
analyse what people do.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. At what level did you analyse that?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. At what organizational level?
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Yes.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. From the CEO of Nalcor down to people who

answer telephones.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. In terms of – let’s pick a group of people.

Engineering Services.  Did you analyse the
people within the various engineering
services to see exactly what services they
provided and then say -

MR. CELLARS:
A. Yeah, yeah, I would say yes.  What we did is

we had extensive data given to us on the
groups of engineering in both organizations
and then the individual engineers and what
they do.  Now, from there we looked at, you
know, the two organizations and then we
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looked at the processes and the procedures
to see if they’re doing it in a common
fashion that there’s no differences that
could cause a combination – cause
difficulties there.  So, we looked at what
they do, the processes and procedures they
do it, the spans of control and the –
basically disciplines, and then we looked at
those jobs from there and we looked at how
we could combine them to be more efficient.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. To the extent there were metrics available

that would talk about the units of –
specific units of work, not vague units,
specific measureable units, we looked at
everything management provided.  I don’t
think there’s anything we have beyond what
they gave us.  So, we used all the stuff,
all of that stuff that management had,
unless there’s something they didn’t give us
and I’d be a little surprised because I
think we asked for that stuff and I think -

MR. CELLARS:
A. We looked at -
MR. ANTONUK:
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A. - as I said, management was pretty
forthcoming.

MR. CELLARS:
A. We looked at location also was another

factor of where people are doing the work.
So, I think we did a – from an engineering
organization, did a fairly good look at a
lot of data to determine the combination.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Did you look at who’s going to do the work

when the people are gone?
MR. CELLARS:
A. Well, if you look at the numbers, you know,

because of the way that an organization
organizes and you would have the end state
organization, you know, half of the – a
little over half of the reduction would have
been redundancy.  So, there would be no
additional work there.  Some of the
reductions were in some vacancies, so the
work is getting done – we didn’t even look
at all the vacancies.  We probably did – we
took credit for maybe even a third of the
vacancies.  So, the work is presumably, from
what I can tell, getting done right now
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fairly well.  And then we then looked at
basically the numbers of people and we took
a very, very modest reduction there and I
think if you look at – take the redundancies
out of the picture, you’re looking at
probably three to four percent reduction in
an engineering organization that’s fairly
duplicative.  I could do a work task
analysis, but I would probably be pretty
assured that the work would get done safely
and reliably with that modest reduction.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. When we were done with each organization, we

had a sense of the organization.  We had a
picture of it at a reasonably detailed
level.  We had a picture of the difference
in resources and their alignment.  So, from
that perspective, yes.  When you say who’s
going to get the work when it’s done, well
not at the individual level and we allow for
those kind of factors because you never know
who’s – depending on how you structure a
departure program and depending on the
uncertainty you create in structuring it,
you’re not certain who’s going to go.
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So, we tried as best we could to kind
of identify where we were going to produce
clear busts, like a span of control that was
too large, and we assumed, in a couple of
cases, that that would mean that someone –
that if we eliminated two people at higher –
I’m sorry, I always forget the reporter – if
we eliminated two people at a higher level,
we may have to bring one up from a level
here to here to match.  So we tried to do
that.

Honestly, I think from what we were
seeing spans of control tended to be too
small and not too large, which was one of
the indications that there was duplication.
So, we were sensitive to that, but I think
the problems tend to be more the reverse.
The issues we saw were with the current
structure and numbers, not the ultimate
structure and numbers.  But I think there
are probably several cases where we clearly
recognized that somebody who maybe was a top
level supervisor or a middle level manager
might have to jump up in order to eliminate
a span of control problem that would occur
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by bringing two groups together who now have
what, they have a larger total complement.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. I’m a little confused, something that you

said this morning, which was that you
concluded that you could get about 12
million in savings in 2020 through reduction
in salaries.  Did you cost that out?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah, we were looking at the cost as having

been amortizable for the most part in the
first year, you know, with reductions in
2020.  So 2021, I think is the first number.
It is possible that a constriction of the
period would increase transition costs, an
extension of the period will reduce them.
We did not try to calculate those details
because where we were at is sort of looking
at the total savings per year that are
achievable on a sustainable basis and saying
that even if those costs are as substantial
as they can be for transitioning people out,
they were not material when looking at the
sustaining savings.  We did not try to
measure the transition costs.  You know,
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doing that is not easy.  It’s easy to
conclude that those costs are not a barrier
to making the change, but to actually go
through the process of quantifying, you have
to think about what’s my attrition rate in
each organization, who am I going to lose to
retirement.  If I trust to that, am I going
to have to bring in somebody to temporarily
fill a position that I’m going to lose.  So
all of those things would have to be done.
I’ve never seen a case where those are the
kind of factors that say where I can cut 100
people a year, I should do it because my
cost of transitioning are too high.  That’s
never a barrier in my experience to making
these reductions.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Well, over time for sure, but to suggest

that you might get 12.7 million dollar
savings in year one, I’ll call it year one,
when there will be costs associated with
termination of those people, 12 million is a
false number.  It has costs that have to be
attributed against it, would you not agree?

MR. ANTONUK:
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A. The costs have to be measured against it.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Right.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. The costs that we measured are the costs in

the positions reduced.  We did not offset
those costs, and by the way, the ordinary
practice is if those costs are material, you
don’t take them in one year anyway, you
amortize them.  So I’m not sure how much
that number would change.  It would be a
function on probably what the Commission
would decide is the proper amortization
period, which I assume would be long enough
to recognize that a long lasting change can
be amortized over a reasonably long lasting
period.  There are certainly numbers there,
but I think I’m having trouble seeing how
(a) we could have measured them with
precision, or how (b) they would have
changed the results, but if you’re going to
give me the construct that says I have to
eat all those costs in one year, a fair
point.

EATON, Q.C.:
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Q. Okay, because at the same time you said this
morning that some of it could be done
through attrition, and attrition is going to
take time.  So, you know, that’s not always
going to happen in year one or year two.  It
might take –

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Well, I always find myself surprised by the

level of the reaction to attrition
announcements and the very large number of
people who line up to take them.  You know,
that’s induced attrition which comes at a
cost certainly.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Okay.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. But I think particularly with aging

workforces, and we have not done – I don’t
think we did a greying workforce analysis
here.

MR. DASCHBACK:
A. No.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. So we wouldn’t be able to give you any clear

guidance on what we expect would be the case
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here relative to induced versus normal
attrition.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Okay.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. It’s not going to be – if amortized over any

length of time, it’s not going to be enough
to call these savings into question, no.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Did you consider the disruption that it

might have within the organization at a key
time when Muskrat Falls is soon to be coming
on stream?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. I don’t really take your point as having a

lot of applicability certainly to Hydro
resources.  We did say that there are some
key resources that would have to be
sustained on a permanent basis.  We tried to
allow for that and we would have had more
substantial reductions if we had not.  I
think we also allowed, for example, LCP
operation to extend to 2023.  So I think we
did try to take account of that.  I’m not
really seeing a case for high concern that a
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process well executed, that makes key people
aware of where they stand.  I don’t really
see that as this great threat to finishing
the LCP.  I think the problem you got with
the LCP is more function of things like
whether you can get GE to make the software
on the LIL work.  You know, I see those as
the challenges for LCP, not kind of scaring
the organization, if you will.  As a matter
of fact, I think, you know, there are a lot
of people working on the project now who
probably are already living with the kind of
fear I’ve seen time to time again in the
industry when a big project is ending.  Some
of those people leave because they’re
afraid, some of them leave because they’re
bored.  I don’t see that as a cause for
great alarm.  I see that as a cause for some
management attention.

MR. CELLARS:
A. To your point, John, we did look at the

project coming online and what skillsets and
resources would be needed, and we took that
into account in some of the organizational
structures and a combination.
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EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Okay.  Did you look at the impact this might

have, cost or otherwise, on existing labour
agreements, collective agreements?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. We certainly looked at that relative to the

combination of Newfoundland Power and Hydro
because they’re different.  I don’t think
that in discussing these, we were made aware
of insurmountable issues.

MR. CELLARS:
A. Well, most of these were professional

positions.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah.  A fairly small number of these were

bargaining unit positions.
MR. CELLARS:
A. So we did consider that.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah, we looked at it, we did look at it.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. And the cost that might be involved?
(12:45 p.m.)
MR. CELLARS:
A. Most of the positions that we’re talking
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about here in this combination are non-
union.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. That’s the reductions?
MR. CELLARS:
A. Right.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Okay, but the movement of power supply into

Hydro, employees currently employed by
Nalcor would become employees of Hydro with
labour agreements in place with respect to
that?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. I don’t recall management telling us that

there was going to be a kind of a seismic
issue associated with that.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. So, no?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. If there is, you know, you could have told

us.  I guess, now you can tell the Board.
Let me say we talked about in agreement with
management, and if the kind of thing you’re
talking about was a matter of currency or
concern, we would have dealt with it. It got
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a lot of focus with respect to Newfoundland
Power.  I would find it surprising if it was
an issue internally to Nalcor and Hydro that
management didn’t kind of put that on the
board.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. At Slide 26, at the very first bullet point

there you suggest that, “Organization review
and position definition work do remain to
tailor the reductions”.  Is it correct to
assume or to take from that that this needs
to be managed to more refine from what you
did, which was at a higher level?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Refined?  Gosh, I was all the way with you –
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. You’re talking about tailored.  I’m talking

about refined.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah, and I’m just trying to see if there’s

a difference there.  If you let me stick
with our words, yeah, we do acknowledge
that.  Refined makes it sound like it’s kind
of going back to whether we should be
targeting a different level, whether we

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 150

should be targeting fundamentally different
reductions in this organization versus that
organization.  No, I don’t think that, but I
think clearly that’s the case.  For example,
if somebody is doing something very specific
to the design or the operation of LIL
equipment, you want to make sure that when
that person is moved over to a position that
doesn’t exist in the Hydro hierarchy of
jobs, that that’s made clear and you want to
make sure that it’s clear that the person
who is responsible for supervising that
person understands what needs to be
understood, and that may even mean some
training for that supervisor.  Those are the
kind of refinements.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Or as we’ve already mentioned, perhaps

phasing in over time.  If somebody is set to
retire next year, those types of things.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. I absolutely agree with that.  If you look

at our targets, even if you agree they’re
achievable, if you’ve got some key resource
that staying one more year is going to mean
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that someone is not quite ready to move into
the new job, absolutely, you would do that.
It’s hard to envision that operating on a
very wide scale, though, but there will most
certainly be cases where you’d want to do
that.  There might be cases if you have a
retirement package, there might be someone
who wants to take it that you might want to
work hard to talk her out of taking it.
That’s going to depend on who else is
leaving, but these are not barriers to doing
it.  These are barriers to executing it, or
starting it, I should say, not doing it.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. If you have your report there, page 82.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. I think I’ll have it in a second.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. This chart deals with comparators of, I

guess, Crown electric corporations.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. And I’m a little confused about what it’s

supposed to tell us.  You’ve compared a
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number of Canadian utilities, hydro
utilities in various categories, I guess.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. What does this tell us?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. This was a sanity check to say if Nalcor and

Hydro do what we recommended, is there an
indicator, is there a comparator that would
tell us, you know, have we left them just
too darn short.  Our analysis said we
didn’t, but we said it would be good – you
know, we’re always looking for a benchmark,
right.  That’s what people do in our
business.  This was the benchmark.  We made
no decisions on this basis.  We didn’t do
this until the work was done, and this isn’t
perfect because, for example, Manitoba
Hydro, which also does gas, will tell you
how many employees it has.  It’ll tell you
how many expenses it has, but it doesn’t
split them out.  So you have to come up with
some way to kind of adjust for that, which
we did.  So the idea was to say once we did
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our work and we look at these comparators,
does it look like Nalcor and Hydro will be
left with too few people to do the job.  By
the way, the other thing we had to do, we
had to add Newfoundland Power in because
this is the only province where the split
exists.  So all these other companies have
customer service people and meter readers to
support full customer and user population.
So we added Newfoundland Power and Nalcor,
and I think the other adjustment we made is
we said – no criticism of Newfoundland
Power’s officer structure, but if we assumed
an operation that combined Newfoundland
Power, probably the only two officers you’d
end up with is probably someone in charge of
distribution and someone in charge of
customer service.  So we eliminated two of
the friends that we made at Newfoundland
Power under that assumed combination.  No
offence intended.  It was a strictly
hypothetical adjustment, but it was designed
to say we don’t want to over count the
resulting mix of officers.  Employees we
thought was pretty clear, we figured that
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was about the right number to add from an
employee basis.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Yet just as a simple comparison, Manitoba

Hydro with 22,500 gigawatt hours has 6,000
employees, compared to Nalcor’s 1,566.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah.  See that –
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. So you can’t draw any conclusion from that,

is that what you’re saying?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. I think you can draw a conclusion if you

look at all the data here.  I don’t think
you can draw a conclusion based on anyone.
For example – what was the one you
mentioned?

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Manitoba Hydro.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah, if you noticed, that’s all in gigawatt

hours.  Manitoba Hydro also delivers MMBTU.
There’s no way to make that adjustment, so
we actually quite understated the equivalent
sales numbers for Manitoba.  I was okay with
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that because if anything, that would tend to
make you all’s numbers look more
competitive.  So I should have made an
adjustment for that.  There was no practical
way to make the adjustment, and if I did
make the adjustment on a comparative basis,
you all would have looked worse.  So I left
it alone.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. When I take all of that consideration,

right, every one of these numbers could be
adjusted for some factor or other?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. No, I don’t agree with that.  Customers are

customers, employees are employees,
executives are executives, and those
expenses are all measured on a comparable
basis.  If you want to measure them a
different way, you know, go ahead.  I put
this one out.  You can critique it.  If
there’s a better one – well, I can’t
critique it because we’re not going to be
here next week, but if there’s a better one,
I guess you can show it to them and you can
criticize ours, and I guess someone else
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will criticize theirs, because we sure
won’t.  We won’t be here anymore.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. All in all, bottom line is, you say it’s

just a benchmark.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. That’s correct.  Well, I’m not even going to

say that because to me a – you can call it a
benchmark in a general sense.  It’s a sanity
check.  We were looking for whether or not
when we were all done here, the Hydro ratios
that resulted just don’t make sense compared
to this data.  We were altogether done with
that, and the most we would have done if the
numbers would have shown a concern as
opposed to what they show, which is the
opposite, I would have gone back to all
these people and say you better show me what
you did again because I want to see an
accounting for the fact that other people of
a similar size, you know, need a lot more
people than we’re assuming.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Okay.  I want to move on now to the

regulation of the Muskrat Falls O & M costs
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and capital costs, and you have suggested
that they should be subject to regulation by
the Board.  At page 36 of your report, in
the heading and then in your text there, you
talk about the dual personality.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Um?
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. The dual personality.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes, sorry.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. So to understand that correctly then, you’re

saying that by having the cost attributed to
the customers, and the profits or the
margins from off system sales going to
Nalcor, there’s a dual personality.  Is that
your point there?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. That’s certainly one aspect of it.  I don’t

know if it’s – I’d have to read this again
to say more than that’s one example of what
I’m talking about in there, or what we’re
talking about.  It’s the treatment of LCP –
I’m having a little trouble reading that.
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You probably can’t make this much bigger,
can you?  I’m apologizing for my eyes and my
age.  I’ve got it now, I think.  Thanks,
that’s fine.  Okay, I’m comfortable with
what I said.  That’s clearly an example of
what we’re talking about here.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. And then in that same heading you talk

about, I guess, the pull between actual cost
and the fact that the Board has to take the
cost as they find them.  You mentioned that
this morning in your slide.  You used the
word “fiat”.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes, the concern that the Board must take

the cost as Nalcor produces them is a
concern.  Hydro really must take them and
the Board, therefore, can’t do anything
about them.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Just in terms of what you’re saying in this

piece of your report, you seem to be
suggesting that power supply will be
interested in maximizing margins?

MR. ANTONUK:
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A. Unquestionably.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Okay.  Margins are one of the significant

potential sources for rate mitigation here?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Are you suggesting that that will jeopardize

reliability?
(1:00 p.m.)
MR. ANTONUK:
A. You could theoretically run that plant at a

time of high value to increase margins and
then produce by deferring an outage
increased cost that Nalcor won’t bear, but
customers will. So, yes, it’s possible. That
was really not the principal concern that we
were focusing on, but I think unless the
power plant guy says otherwise, I think
that’s one way if I was worried about off
system margins and wasn’t responsible for
operating costs, that I could do harm.

MR. CELLARS:
A. Yeah, I think it’s not uncommon in a period

of high revenue, plant operators will push
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the plant to the limits.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. And does that apply in Crown owned plants or

is that in investor owned plants?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. I’m not sure why ownership versus who’s

responsible for costs would change that.  By
the way, I want to amend the answer a little
bit because I want to say that in the long
run, I don’t think there is – if my focus is
off system sales and I’m not responsible for
the consequences on a capital operating
site, I still think I want a reliable plant.
So I have a hard time extending what I
talked about being a potential short term
phenomenon.  I don’t what to extrapolate
that to a standard way of business.  I’m
going to tell you I think that Nalcor has a
high interest in maintaining reliability of
the unit, and I was afraid I might have
conveyed something different. I’m sorry, now
I’ve disrupted your other question.

EATON, Q.C.:
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Q. Well, I guess the real issue then, or the
primary issue I seem to take from what
you’re saying is that if the reward goes
back towards the rates, the concern is
addressed?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. The concern about what?  About regulation?
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Well, you’ve made the point in your report.

It seems to be suggesting that was your
primary focus on this.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. No, no –
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. As long as the margins went back to the

people who paid for it.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Oh, no, that wasn’t the primary concern.

That was one concern.  Of equal concern is
that when you do not have market discipline
over capital and operating costs, you need
regulatory oversight to assure it.  I give
Hydro and Nalcor equal credit for wanting to
run plants reliably and cost effectively.
If customers are paying for it and there’s
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no competitive alternative, we still
regulate Hydro, don’t we.  Why would we not
regulate Nalcor?  The same exact principles
apply.  So I don’t think the need for
regulation is driven at its core by this
conflict.  The existence of that conflict
adds to an already fully justifiable reason
for regulation.  So when you say our primary
concern is off system, the conflict relative
to off system margins, I don’t want to
diminish that concern, but I don’t want to
say that was primary.  I never ranked them.
If I were to rank them, I’d say the other
concern is more important because it gets
more to the core of utility regulation.
Utility regulation doesn’t fundamentally
exist because there’s a conflict of
interest.  It exists because there’s no
competition, and regulation provides an
alternative to assure that there is
oversight of capital costs, operating costs,
and reliability that a market would provide
if it existed, but in the absence of that
market, we have regulation.  So the conflict
issue is sort of the icing on the cake, if

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 163

you will.  I like the cake better, so I
wanted to say icing in the sense of less
central.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. All right, let’s talk about regulation of

the O & M costs and capital costs.  You’re
aware of the basis upon which this project
was put together and on which various
participants agreed to become involved?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. I’m going to say Randy Vickroy is a lot more

familiar than I am, but if you want to test
the limits of my knowledge, I’m happy to do
that, and I’ll punt when it’s fourth down.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. I don’t intend to test your legal knowledge,

but you’re aware there was legislation and
Orders in Council, and that there are
various commercial agreements in place?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. And that those various things in those

documents and those agreements, the
legislation, the Orders in Council, require
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that certain things be done?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. And that what you’re suggesting by putting

the O & M costs in a regulated field is not
in keeping with the legislation, the Orders
in Council, and the commercial agreements?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. No, I don’t – you would have to explain to

me what restrains the Commission – there are
things that certainly restrain the
Commission from passing, for example,
operating costs through the agreements.  I
agree with you there, but if the Commission
were to say – let’s say capital costs.  If
the Commission were to say we want to have a
review of capital costs, and the Commission
said we don’t approve that capital program,
I don’t think there’s anything that says the
Federal Government or the bond holders can
overturn a decision of the Board that
removes capital costs from having to be
recovered through those agreements in the
first place.  If that exists, I would defer
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to it because we clearly do this on the
basis that we do not believe it is logical
to propose anything that would put anybody
in default of any covenants, agreements, or
commitments.  That’s for sure.  So I’m also
not sure what would happen if the costs are
collected by Hydro and then disallowed.  I
mean, I think – I find what you’re raising
is a terribly intriguing issue.  I don’t
think it’s a very linear one to talk about,
but I certainly would respect the fact that
whatever the Commission does should be done
without crashing any of those agreements
because the consequences of that, by
definition, are worse than trying to promote
efficiency and capital and operation
spending on the project.  I think that’s
kind of what you were getting at, right?

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. That’s it.  Okay, I want to just talk a

little bit about Nalcor Energy Marketing.
We’ve already talked about the margins going
to offset rates and you’ve mentioned that
just recently and earlier this morning that
that’s a government decision to make.
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Right.  Now, you mentioned this morning or
your suggestion is to move NEM, as it’s
referred to, into Hydro?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Control of NEM.  Control of NEM’s management

and operations.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Okay.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. NEM as a corporate entity can—it doesn’t

necessarily have to cease to be a corporate
entity.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Okay.  And under that model, the risks—so,

when you say control of, NEM would then
become a subsidiary of Hydro, is that what
you’re suggesting?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. But that’s the most direct way to do it.

Whether that kind of a corporate
restructuring under Canadian law causes a
lot of problems, I’m okay as long as the
operational direction to NEM is from the
utility.

EATON, Q.C.:
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Q. Okay.  My question really relates to risk.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Right?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. If NEM is under Hydro, the risk then becomes

Hydro’s risk, whatever risk is associated
with NEM in the marketplace?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah, as it is for the 31 states in the US

and -
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Right.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Well, and in some states, it’s outside of

the regulated field, right?  The risk is not
always with the regulated entity.  Sometimes
the risk is with a non-regulated?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. But never under circumstances that apply
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here.  Only when other circumstances are
fundamentally different which is that all
the risks and the rewards of operating the
units that are involved in making those
sales either go to a non-utility operation
where they stay with the utility operation
in the sense that their costs are passed
through to monopoly customers.  It’s always
that way in my experience, not necessarily
all in Canada.  There are some jurisdictions
in Canada that apply the margins, but let
these entities—yeah.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Which was my next question.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. So, the margins go.  The risks are outside.

Aren’t the customers better protected in
that scenario?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. No.  There are and we evaluate these risks

and how they’re managed.  There are in every
gas distribution utility in the US, every
one of the 31 utilities, there are the same
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risks.  Those risks are hedge-able.  It is
recognized in the utility business that the
utility should not be moving their assets in
markets without covering the risks so that
you make transactions where risks are
mitigated.  The risks in the utility
operation are protected, A, by regulation
which oversees these operations, and B,
they’re protected by what we have seen time
and time again which utilities operate these
programs sometimes in much more active
markets, sometimes in much more dynamic
markets with proper organization, structures
and risk controls.  And if you look at
actual experience, those who manage risk
poorly are not the utility.  Well, nobody
manages them poorly.  Those who have taken
risks that have led to financial troubles
are not the utility operators.  They are the
constellations, the Enrons, the Calpines.
They’re all the ones that are in the totally
unregulated model.  So, I agree with you
that the risks move with whoever is
operating it, but I’m saying that those
risks are manageable and mitigatable.  I
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will say this, if it is the province of the
policy to permit the marketing entity to
engage in fundamentally riskier transactions
that their peers do, then moving those
operations to Hydro with that same risk
tolerance would be a mistake from the
utility perspective.  So, I would say if the
province decides that it wants to put its
taxpayers at risk of uncovered trades,
that’s fine.  They can do that.  I’m sure
not going to recommend that.  I think that
would be a catastrophe waiting to happen,
but if they’re going to have higher risk, if
the province’s policy is they want Nalcor to
operate in fundamentally riskier ways in
disposing of these excess assets
capabilities, I would say, yeah, I’d be the
first one to say to get it the heck out of
the utility.  But you’re not really
minimizing any risk there.  You’re just
moving it from customers to taxpayers.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. At the government’s direction?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yeah.  Wow, yeah.  It’s just hard for me to
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imagine that the government wants to make
Nalcor a high-risk energy trader.  I’d say
to everybody in this room, I’d be a little
scared if that’s the case.  I wouldn’t want
to see that done by the most sophisticated
operations that I’ve looked at in my
experience.  And by the way, that’s not how
people trade any more and they don’t trade
any more because all of these companies went
bankrupt.  Even the big guys, they don’t
take—the big guys or the big girls, call
them whichever, they don’t take those kinds
of risks anymore either.  They’ve learned
the hard way.  I hope you all learn the easy
way.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. So, in Canada today, what’s your

understanding of the regulatory oversight of
the various utilities that trade excess
power?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. I don’t recall them one by one.  I think,

pretty much everything we know about it is
what’s set forth in the report.  So, I mean,
I can take a look at that and tell you.  I
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don’t remember them.  I just remember in
general that it is less common to have
oversight of the operational side of those
entities.  Certainly, and we’ve done a lot
of work in Canada or in Nova Scotia, the
Nova Scotia part of Canada, doing fuel and
energy audits, and we look very closely at
all the things I told you, and we’ve also
worked in, you know, regular rate cases,
base rate cases and energy clauses, and we
were as active and down in the details and
looking at all of those things as more so
than was done with costs in general rate
increase applications.

(1:15 p.m.)
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. What regulatory model are you suggesting?

You’ve mentioned it at page 42 of your
report.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. This is about Nalcor Energy Marketing

specifically, correct?
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Here we go.
MR. ANTONUK:
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A. This portion.
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Nalcor Energy Marketing, yes.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Can you show me the reference to –
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. There are three bullet points, approximately

the middle of the screen there now.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. Oh, I see.  Okay.  The model I would propose

is that the Board review the actions and
transactions of Nalcor Energy Marketing like
it does any other utility regulatory
activity from a standard of prudence.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Can you be a little more helpful than that

in terms of how that would play itself out?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. You mean what techniques the Board would

apply, what processes?
EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Yes.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. First of all, they would be looking at, in

general rate cases, they would be looking at
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the costs that it takes to operate, just
like they do the costs it takes to operate
any other function.  They would be looking
at the revenues expected as a result of
those operations and they would basically be
trying to decide from a rate-making purpose
what is reasonable to include in rates for
operating and maintenance and if they had
any capital expenses, they’re usually not
great for these operations, and what revenue
projections come from it.  So, that’s the
base level.  I would expect those cases,
because you’ve got capable stakeholders
here, to raise in those cases questions
about what levels of risk are you taking?
Are you controlling them?  What’s your
experience been?  And then, the commission
could use those in one of a number of ways.
One way, they can make adjustments to either
revenues or expenses in a rate case just
like they do every other aspect of service.
The other thing they could do is what Nova
Scotia does and I suspect still does, what
we used to do for them, which is to do
periodic audits to look at whether or not
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the operations are making effective use of
markets without taking undue risk.  I think
I’m of the sense or maybe I’m not being fair
to the filing that you made that somehow you
were anticipating us doing—requiring some
kind of prior approval to transactions.  Not
necessarily.  You do occasionally see some
commissions that decide what level of
hedging and what types of hedging should be
done.  You see sometimes limits on
transaction types.  What you typically see
in commissions that do periodic audits, that
they look at every aspect of it,
organization staffing, risk control, risk
management, transaction processing to make
sure that the front, the middle and the back
offices are all operating—how should I put
this?  Capably and without conflicts, you
know, because trading doesn’t just involve
market risk.  It involves traders who
sometimes, you know, work for their own
account and cheat the system, you know,
cheat the company.  These audits do all of
that.  Not everybody does those audits.
Whether they’re done or not, in some cases
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is a function of either the Commission
itself or stakeholder’s kind of saying we’ve
seen an adverse trend in external market
operations.  We want to have an examination
of it.  Sometimes that examinations comes
through something like this, a generic
proceeding; sometimes in a rate case;
sometimes the commissioning of a separate
audit.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. You’re not referring to prior approval.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. That’s correct.  I think what you all tend

to refer to as the nimble level where you
need to kind of make a decision realtime,
no, nothing like that.  Nobody does that;
nobody should do that; nobody can do that
effectively.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. In either a regulation of energy marketing

or the O&M costs, was the cost of regulation
a factor at all?

MR. ANTONUK:
A. I can answer that question in this context,

but I think you’re looking for something
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deeper, so le me start and see if I missed
the boat.  I don’t think that the cost of
regulation of the types we’re proposing is
less than the value it produces.  Will
regulation have a cost?  Yes, as I think you
should read from my discussion, this is a
part that I wrote, I think the cost of
regulation is a function of how well you
manage regulation and it would be my view
that I would not use the cost you bear to
manage regulation as a model for cost of
regulation because I don’t think you manage
it very well.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Sorry, you lost me there.
MR. ANTONUK:
A. I’m saying that I’ve heard a lot of

complaints about what regulation does to you
all and I think that’s less because the
Board is overly intrusive or inquisitive or
that the stakeholders are unfair to you, I
don’t think you all have a good process for
kind of keeping the regulatory process under
good control and that’s why we recommended
as part of this study that you create a
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position that’s dedicated to that.  So I do
believe regulatory costs are a factor.  I
think when regulatory costs are the result
of a well run regulatory organization, they
are not prohibitive.  When they are
prohibitive, it’s usually because a company
makes the kind of mistakes that engage
regulators a lot more or even if they are
performing very well, don’t have a very good
handle on how to allow regulation to happen
cost effectively.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. Okay.  I just want to ask you know about

your suggestion about seeking a contractor
and your, I think is the way you expressed
it, Nalcor Energy Marketing is a very small
organization.

MR. ANTONUK:
A. Yes, and I don’t mean that in a too small to

operate effectively, I don’t mean that at
all.  I mean they are of a size that makes
it logical to look at whether they can
extract more value from these assets by
using an asset manager.  So small in that
sense; you’re not pipsqueaks, you’re grown
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adults.  You can support an organization
internally that is effective.  The question
is not that, that effective, ineffective,
the question is maximizing value for
customers.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. And were you aware of the trading contract

that existed some years ago
MR. ANTONUK:
A. I knew it existed and I have seen—I have

experience with Emera’s, I think it was
Emera, I have experience with Emera’s
operations of a similar nature in other
places, but at a general level, yes.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. And you know that it came to an end and it

was considered to be not cost beneficial?
MR. ANTONUK:
A. I don’t know that, but I’m not surprised to

hear that and I think the circumstance—and
that’s why I sort of talk about outreach to
the market, as opposed to kind of running
out there with an RFP.  The market now is
not what it was then.  Things are changing,
a lot is changing in the US northeast.  We
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have two very contradictory things going on
in the markets that I think you want to
reach.  One is that gas has made power
almost too cheap for the competitive
suppliers to make money at doing it.  That’s
not a good sign for you.  On the other hand,
there is a continuing, I’d say growing
effort to find ways to generate electricity
without carbon production.  That’s a great
strength for you.  And also there’s this
other factor too, which is little old
Tenaska is big old giant Tenaska now and
there are others in the business, so I’m not
sure the market is the same.  I’m not sure
the players are the same.  Most
fundamentally I’m not so sure how interested
the others would be in this market because
it is developing.  It could be attractive to
them; it could be a barrier, I don’t know.
I’m not sure how you would know either
without soliciting interest is what I’m
saying.

EATON, Q.C.:
Q. All right, thank you Mr. Antonuk.
MR. ANTONUK:
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A. Thank you.
CHAIR:
Q. Well that’s fortuitous timing I guess.

We’ll break for the day and reconvene at 9
in the morning.  Who will we start with in
the morning, Newfoundland Power’s first
question?   Okay, 9 a.m. in the morning.

Hearing concluded at 1:25 p.m.
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